
Page | 1 

Apex Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, December 03, 2019 

 
   

Lance Olive, Mayor 

Nicole L. Dozier, Mayor Pro Tempore 

William S. Jensen, Wesley M. Moyer, Audra M. Killingsworth, and 

Brett D. Gantt, Council Members 

Drew Havens, Town Manager 

Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 

Laurie L. Hohe, Town Attorney 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Apex Town Council 

scheduled for Tuesday, December 03, 2019, at 

7:00 PM will be held in the Council Chamber of 

Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street.  The meeting 

will adjourn when all business is concluded or at 

11:00 p.m., whichever comes first. 

 

COMMENCEMENT 
       

 

Call to Order  :  Invocation  :  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 

PRESENTATIONS 
       

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
       

 

All Consent Agenda items are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the adoption of the Consent Agenda,  

and without discussion.  If a Council Member requests discussion of an item, the item  

may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.  The Mayor will present the  

Consent Agenda to be set prior to taking action on the following items: 

 

CN1 Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept 

the Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date of Public 

Hearing on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Tim and Lauren 

Medlin property containing 1.929 acres located at 6517 Roosondall Court, Annexation #681 into 

the Town’s corporate limits. 

CN2 Sarah Rayfield, Senior Planner 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council for Rezoning Case #19CZ02, Morris Acres PUD, 

Kaplan Residential/Edith S. Morris/ Jason Barron, Morningstar Law Group petitioners for the 

property located at 0, 7208 and 7208B Morris Acres Road. 

CN3 Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 



Page | 2 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case #19CZ18, 

Maureen Hughes, petitioner, for the property located on 113 West Street. 

CN4 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council for Rezoning Case #19CZ19, Michael Pfeifer & 

Jennifer Crank, petitioners for the properties located at 3605 & 3700 Old US 1 Hwy. 

CN5 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Motion to approve the Statement of the Apex Town Council pursuant to G.S. 160A-383 addressing 

action on the various Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments of November 17, 2019. 

CN6 Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the December 17, 2019 Town Council Meeting regarding 

Rezoning Application #19CZ20 2708 Blazing Trail Drive. The applicant, Jones & Cnossen 

Engineering, PLLC., seeks to rezone approximately 2.00 acres located at 2708 Blazing Trail Drive 

from Rural Residential (RR) to Medium Density-Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ). 

CN7 Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Motion to set the Public Hearing on December 17, 2019 to designate the property located at 2708 

Olive Chapel Road a Historic Landmark in compliance with North Carolina General Statute 160A-

400.4 

CN8 Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Motion to set the Public Hearing on December 17, 2019 to de-landmark the property located at 

4525 Green Level West Road a Historic Landmark in compliance with North Carolina General 

Statute 160A-400.4 

CN9 Joanna Helms, Economic Development Director 

Motion to approve budget amendment for Economic Development for economic development 

incentive payment 

CN10 Angela Reincke, Parks and Greenways Planner 

Motion to approve construction contract in the amount of $303,415.82 with Bridge Point Civil, 

LLC for construction of a portion of Phase II of the Middle Creek Greenway from Reunion Pointe 

to Straywhite Avenue in Miramonte and to authorize the Town Manager to execute all 

necessary documents for the project. 

CN11 John M. Brown , Director Parks Recreation and Cultural Resources 

Motion to approve property deed restrictions for Salem Pond Park and authorize Town Manager 

to sign any associated documents to complete the transaction 

CN12 Laurie Hohe 



Page | 3 

Motion to approve a settlement agreement and release between the Town of Apex and MREC 

KLP STILLWATER, LLC related to a dispute concerning reimbursement for the cost of construction 

of a multi-use path as part of the Stillwater development and authorize the Town Manager to 

execute same and approve Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 7 appropriating funds for the 

settlement.   

CN13 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Motion to approve Minutes of the November 19, 2019 Regular Meeting and Closed Session 

Minutes of June 18, July 16, August 6, August 20, September 3, September 17, October 1, 

October 15, November 6, and November 19, 2019 (Closed Session Minutes recorded separately) 

CN14 Marty Stone, P.E., Assistant Town Manager 

Motion to approve a Master Services Agreement, valid through June 30, 2022, with Ellington 

Contractors, Inc. and authorization for the Town Manager to execute same for pumping, 

hauling, pipe cleaning, and video inspection services on an as needed basis. 

CN15 Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Motion to set a Public Hearing for Tuesday, December 17, 2019 at 7:00 pm to receive citizen 

input regarding the formulation of the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual Budget. 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
       

 

Mayor Olive will call for additional Agenda items from Council or Staff and set the Agenda prior to 

taking action 

 

 

 

PUBLIC FORUM 
       

 

Public Forum allows the public an opportunity to address the Town Council.  The speaker is requested not to 

address an item that appears as a Public Hearing scheduled on the Regular Agenda.  The Mayor will recognize 

those who would like to speak at the appropriate time.  Large groups are asked to select a representative to speak 

for the entire group.  Comments must be limited to 3 minutes to allow others the opportunity to speak. 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
       

 

 

 



Page | 4 

OLD BUSINESS 
       

 

 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
       

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
       

 

 

 

WORK SESSION 
       

 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
       

 

NB1  

Recognition of Outgoing Council Members 

Lance Olive, William S. Jensen, and Wesley M. Moyer will be recognized for their service with the 

Town 

 

 

SINE DIE 
       

 

appIADDdca35b43ee7141afb5da66cd52b4bedeMayor Olive will adjourn the meeting Sine Die. 

 

After a brief recess, Mayor Pro Tem Dozier will reconvene the meeting to begin with the Organizational 

Proceedings. 

 

 

ORGANIZATIONAL PROCEEDINGS 
       

 



Page | 5 

NB1  

ORGANIZATIONAL PROCEEDINGS OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL 

Administering of Oaths 

Jacques K. Gilbert, Cheryl F. Stallings, and Terry Mahaffey will take the Oath of Office and  be 

seated on the dais 

Selection of Mayor Pro Tempore 

Council will vote in a Mayor Pro Tempore, and that person will take the Oath of Office 

Appointments of Standing Committees and Liaisons 

Mayor Gilbert will appoint Council Committees and Liaisons 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
       

 

NB1 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Motion to approve the Calendar of Town Council meetings for 2020 and 2021, set the start time 

of the meetings, and set the location of the meeting.  

NB2 Audra Killingsworth, Council Member 

Discussion regarding Town Council Resolutions 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
       

 

  



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019  

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Department(s): Planning 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing on 

the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Tim and Lauren Medlin property 

containing 1.929 acres located at 6517 Roosondall Court, Annexation #681 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation.  Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website.  The 

Public Hearing would be scheduled for the December 17, 2019 Town Council meeting. 

 

 

Attachments 

 Annexation Petition 

 Legal Description 

 Vicinity Map 

 Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 

 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 

 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 

















    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 
TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 
Annexation Petition #681 

6517 Roosondall Court 
 
 
 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160-A 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 
be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 
take place; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation; 
 
   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of her 
investigation. 
 
This the 3rd day of December 2019. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Lance Olive 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
  



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 
 

Annexation Petition #681 
6517 Roosondall Court 

 
 

 
To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
    I,  Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 
annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 
is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 
accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 
 
    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Town of Apex, North Carolina this 3rd day of December 2019. 
 
 
 
 

                                                                      
________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

                                                           Town Clerk 
      

    
 
 
 
         (Seal) 
 
 

 
 











Wake County 
Government -
North Carolina

Home Wake County Real Estate Data iMaps 
Account Summary Tax Bills

Real Estate ID 0146775 PIN #  0743120883

Location Address Property Description
6517 ROOSONDALL 
CT

LO1A PROP OF DON SUTTON BM1986-00259

Pin/Parcel History Search Results  New Search 
Account |Buildings| Land | Deeds | Notes | Sales | Photos | Tax Bill | Map

Account
Search

S

Property Owner
MEDLIN, TIMOTHY K & LAUREN L
(Use the Deeds link to view any additional owners) 

Owner's Mailing Address
6517 ROOSONDALL CT
APEX NC 27523-9658

Property Location Address
6517 ROOSONDALL CT 
APEX NC 27523-9658

Administrative Data
Old Map # 569-00000-0147
Map/Scale 0743 03
VCS 20AP900
City
Fire District 23
Township WHITE OAK
Land Class R-<10-HS
ETJ AP
Spec Dist(s)
Zoning RR
History ID 1
History ID 2
Acreage 1.85
Permit Date 4/29/2013
Permit # 0000030038

Transfer Information

Deed Date 11/9/2012
Book & Page 15010  2340
Revenue Stamps 658.00
Pkg Sale Date 11/9/2012
Pkg Sale Price $311,892
Land Sale Date
Land Sale Price

Improvement Summary

Total Units 1
Recycle Units 1
Apt/SC Sqft
Heated Area 2,083

Assessed Value

Land Value 
Assessed

$184,500

Bldg. Value 
Assessed

$185,161

Tax Relief

Land Use Value
Use Value 
Deferment
Historic Deferment
Total Deferred Value

Use/Hist/Tax Relief 
Assessed
Total Value 
Assessed*

$369,661

*Wake County assessed building and land values reflect the market value as of January 1, 2016, which is the 
date of the last county-wide revaluation. Any inflation, deflation or other economic changes occurring after this 
date does not affect the assessed value of the property and cannot be lawfully considered when reviewing the 
value for adjustment.

The January 1, 2016 values will remain in effect until the next county-wide revaluation. Until that time, any real 
estate accounts created or new construction built is assessed according to the 2016 Schedule of Values.

For questions regarding the information displayed on this site, please contact the Department of Tax 
Administration at Taxhelp@wakegov.com or call 919-856-5400.



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 
Annexation Petition #681 

6517 Rosondall Court 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 
been received; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 
directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 
 
         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 
has been made; 
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 
North Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 
described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 7:00 o’clock p.m. on the 17th 
day of December 2019. 
 
      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 
 
      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 
Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 
of said public hearing. 
 
     This the 3rd day of December 2019. 
 

 
                ________________________________________ 
              Lance Olive, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:                        
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 

  



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

  

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Sarah Rayfield, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council for Rezoning Case #19CZ02, Morris Acres PUD, Kaplan 

Residential/Edith S. Morris/ Jason Barron, Morningstar Law Group petitioners for the property located at 0, 

7208 and 7208B Morris Acres Road. 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

Rezoning Case #19CZ02 was denied at the November 19, 2019 Town Council Meeting 

 

 

Attachments 

 Statement of the Town Council 



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 
ADDRESSING ACTION ON ZONING PETITION #19CZ02 

 
 
 
 Kaplan Residential/Edith S. Morris/ Jason Barron, Morningstar Law Group, owner/applicant 
(the “Applicant”), submitted a completed application for a conditional zoning on the 1st day of 
February 2019 (the “Application”).  The proposed conditional zoning is designated #19CZ02. 
 
 
 The Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given 
(by publication and posting) of a public hearing on #19CZ02 before the Planning Board  on the 1st  day 
of November 2019. 
 
 
 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11(E) of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing 
on #19CZ02 before the Town Council on the 1st day of November 2019. 
 
 

   The Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 12th day of November 2019, gathered 
facts, received public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for 
conditional zoning #19CZ02.  A motion was made at the Apex Planning Board to recommend 
approval; the motion passed unanimously for the application for #19CZ02. 

 
 
 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 19th day of November 2019. Sarah 
Rayfield, Senior Planner, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing.   
 
 
 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #19CZ02 and 
who were residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction, or who owned property adjoining the 
property for which the conditional zoning is sought, were allowed to present evidence at the public 
hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 
 
 
 The Town Council by a vote of 4 to 1 denied Application #19CZ02 to rezone the subject tract 
located at 0, 7208 and 7208B Morris Acres Road from Rural Residential (RR) to Planned Unit 
Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ).   
 
 
 Although the rezoning petition to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning is consistent 
with the Medium Density Residential designation of the 2045 Land Use Map for the subject properties, 
the Apex Town Council finds that the proposed rezoning is not consistent with the Apex Peak Plan 2030 
in that it does not promote the use of green building techniques and the denial of the proposed 
rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest in that the proposed rezoning would have negative 
environmental impacts due to preexisting stormwater conditions.  
 
 
 
  



 
 
STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL ZONING PETITION #19CZ02 
PAGE 2 

 
 
 

                         ______________________________________ 
                         Lance Olive 
                         Mayor 

ATTEST: 
   
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
_________________________ 
Date 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

  

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case #19CZ18, Maureen 

Hughes, petitioner, for the property located on 113 West Street. 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

Rezoning Case #19CZ18 was approved at the November 19, 2019 Town Council Meeting 

 

 

Attachments 

 Statement of the Town Council 

 Ordinance to Amend the Official Zoning District Map 



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 
ADDRESSING ACTION ON ZONING PETITION #19CZ18 

 
 
 
 Maureen Hughes, owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a completed application for 
a conditional zoning on the 3rd day of September 2019 (the “Application”).  The proposed conditional 
zoning is designated #19CZ18. 
 
 
 The Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given 
(by publication and posting) of a public hearing on #19CZ18 before the Planning Board held on the 
12th day of November 2019. 
 
 
 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11(E) of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing 
on #19CZ18  before the Town Council on the 19th day of November 2019. 
 
 

   The Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 12th day of November 2019, gathered 
facts, received public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for 
conditional zoning #19CZ18.  A motion was made at the Apex Planning Board to recommend 
approval; the motion passed unanimously for the application for #19CZ18. 

 
 
 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 19th day of November 2019. Liz Loftin, 
Senior Planner, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing.   
 
 
 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #19CZ18 and 
who were residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction, or who owned property adjoining the 
property for which the conditional zoning is sought, were allowed to present evidence at the public 
hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 
 
 
 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved Application #19CZ18 rezoning the subject tract 
located on 113 West Street from Office & Institutional (O&I) to Medium Density-Conditional Zoning 
(MD-CZ).   
 
 
           The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 Land 
Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as Medium 
Density Residential.  This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map includes the zoning district Medium 
Density-Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ) and the Apex Town Council has further considered that the 
proposed rezoning to Medium Density-Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ) will maintain the character and 
appearance of the area and provide the flexibility to accommodate the growth in population, economy, 
and infrastructure consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map.  
 
 
 
 
 



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL ZONING PETITION #19CZ18 
PAGE 2 

 
 
            The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that it will allow the existing single-family home to become a conforming use. This will allow 
the property owner to make significant improvements to the home including the construction of an 
accessory structure in the back yard, which is currently prohibited due to the nonconforming status of 
the use. The rezoning will encourage compatible development of the property and increase the tax 
base.   
 
 

                         ______________________________________ 
                         Lance Olive 
                         Mayor 

ATTEST: 
   
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
_________________________ 
Date 



ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE TOWN OF APEX TO 
CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY .19 ACRES LOCATED ON 113 WEST STREET FROM 
OFFICE AND INSTITUTIONAL (O&I) TO MEDIUM DENSITY-CONDITIONAL ZONING (MD-CZ) 

#19CZ18 
 
 

  
WHEREAS, the application of Maureen Hughes, petitioner, for the rezoning of lands hereinafter described 
was duly filed with the office of the Planning Director and thereafter public hearings were held hereon on 
the 12th day of November 2019 before the Planning Board and the 19th day of November 2019, before the 
Town Council, respectively, pursuant to due notice mailed and published pursuant to G.S. § 160A-384. 
Thereafter, the Planning Board submitted its final report to the Town Council recommending approval of 
said application for the rezoning of the lands hereinafter described, all in accordance with the requirements 
of the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance and the provisions of Chapter 160A, Article 19, of the 
North Carolina General Statutes; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 
 
 
 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are hereafter 
referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 
 
 
 
            Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Office & Institutional (O&I)to Medium Density-Conditional 
Zoning (MD-CZ) District, subject to the conditions stated herein. 
 
 
 

Section 3:   The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the following conditions which are imposed as 
part of this rezoning: 
 
 
Zoning Conditions: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses 
are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or 
regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such 
references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  

 
1. Accessory Apartment 
2. Single Family 
3. Utility, minor 

 
 
 

Section 4:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official Zoning 
District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect the 
zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 
 
 

 



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map  #19CZ18 
Page Two 

 
 

 
Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including 

the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance.  Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning 
District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

 
 
Section 6:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 
 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 
 
 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 
 
 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 
 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 
 
 This the _____ day of _________________ 2019. 
 
 

                                                                   TOWN OF APEX 
 
 

                                                                      ____________________________________ 
                                                                                                                           Mayor 
ATTEST:          
 
____________________________________ 
                       Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 
                    Town Attorney                 

 





 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019  

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council for Rezoning Case #19CZ19, Michael Pfeifer & Jennifer 

Crank, petitioners for the properties located at 3605 & 3700 Old US 1 Hwy. 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

Rezoning Case #19CZ19 was approved at the November 19, 2019 Town Council Meeting 

 

 

Attachments 

 Statement of the Town Council 



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 
ADDRESSING ACTION ON ZONING PETITION #19CZ19 

 
 
 Michael Pfeifer & Jennifer Crank, owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a completed 
application for a conditional zoning on the 3rd day of September 2019 (the “Application”). The 
proposed conditional zoning is designated #19CZ19. 
 
 
 The Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given 
(by publication and posting) of a public hearing on #19CZ19 before the Planning Board held on the 
12th day of November 2019. 
 
 

  The Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 12th day of November 2019, gathered 
facts, received public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for 
conditional zoning #19CZ19.  A motion was made at the Apex Planning Board to recommend 
approval; the motion passed unanimously for the application for #19CZ19. 
 
 
 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing 
on #19CZ19 before the Town Council on the 19th day of November 2019. 
 

 
 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 19th day of November 2019. Amanda 
Bunce, Current Planning Manager, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public 
hearing.   
 
 
 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #19CZ19 and 
who were residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction, or who owned property adjoining the 
property for which the conditional zoning is sought, were allowed to present evidence at the public 
hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 
 
 
 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved Application #19CZ19 rezoning the subject 
tracts located at 3605 & 3700 Old US 1 Hwy from Wake County Residential-40W (R-40W) & Wake 
County Highway Commercial (HC) to Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ).   
 
 
 The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 
Land Use Plan and other adopted plans in that the 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as Office 
Employment/Commercial Services. This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map includes the zoning 
district Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ) and the Apex Town Council has 
further considered that the proposed rezoning to Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning 
(MORR-CZ) will maintain the character and appearance of the area and provide the flexibility to 
accommodate the growth in population, economy, and infrastructure consistent with that 
contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map.  
 
 
 
 



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL ZONING PETITION #19CZ19 
PAGE 2 

 
 

The Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that it will allow both properties to connect to Town water and maintain the existing uses, 
while providing flexibility for future development. The rezoning will encourage compatible 
development of the property and increase the tax base.   
 
 

                         ______________________________________ 
                         Lance Olive 
                         Mayor 

ATTEST: 
   
 
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
 
_________________________ 
Date 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning Department 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Statement of the Apex Town Council pursuant to G.S. 160A-383 addressing action 

on the various Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments of November 17, 2019. 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval. 

 

 

Item Details 

 

Attachments 
 Statement of the Apex Town Council 



 

STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 ADDRESSING ACTION ON 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) AMENDMENTS OF NOVEMBER 19, 2019 
 
 
 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the Planning 
Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), 
of a public hearing on UDO Amendments before the Town Council on the 19th day of November 2019. 
 
 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 19th day of November 2019. Amanda Bunce, 
Current Planning Manager, presented the Planning Board's vote to recommend approval of items 2-5 by 
a vote of 6-0 and denial of item 1 by a vote of 6-0 at the public hearing. 
 
 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the UDO Amendments and who were 
residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction were allowed to present evidence at the public hearing 
before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 
 
 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 denied the UDO amendment for Sec. 2.2.18.B.5 reviewed as 
item 1.  
 

The Apex Town Council finds from information and testimony provided at the public hearing that 
the denial of this UDO Amendment is consistent with the Advance Apex: The 2045 Plan and reasonable 
and in the public interest for the following reason(s): 
 

1. The amendments to UDO Sec. 2.2.18.B.5 Conduct of Public Hearing, Continuance of Public 
Hearing as written would not address the concerns expressed by the Town Council regarding 
the right of applicants to have one automatic continuance granted. 

 
 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved the Ordinance for UDO Amendments reviewed as 
items 2-5.  
 

The Apex Town Council finds from information and testimony provided at the public hearing that 
the approval of the UDO Amendments (items 2-5) of November 19, 2019 is consistent with the Advance 
Apex: The 2045 Plan and reasonable and in the public interest for the following reason(s): 

 
1. The amendments to UDO Sec. 4.5.5.G Home Occupation, No External Evidence updates the 

standard to add websites or social media as places that the street address of a home 
occupation cannot be advertised. 
 

2. The amendments to UDO Sec. 4.6.1.C.9 Temporary Uses and Structures, Uses Allowed, Other 
Temporary Uses update the wording of the standard to be consistent with the general 
standard recently adopted in Sec. 4.6.1.B Temporary Uses and Structures, General 
Regulations. 

 
3. The amendments to UDO Sec. 9.1.2.B Design Standards, General, Applicability clarify that the 

design standards do not apply to one- and two-family dwellings per State law. 
 

 



 

4. The amendments to UDO Sec. 6.3.1.I Small Town Character Overlay District, Adaptive Reuse 
of Historic Residential Structures increases the distance between a use and shared parking 
from 300’ to 600’ to be consistent with the distance approved for all other locations as found 
in Sec. 8.3.9 Off-Street Parking Alternatives. 
 

 

 
______________________________________ 
Lance Olive 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
 
___________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

 
_________________________ 
Date 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 

Department(s): Planning Department 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the December 17, 2019 Town Council Meeting regarding Rezoning 

Application #19CZ20 2708 Blazing Trail Drive. The applicant, Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC., seeks to 

rezone approximately 2.00 acres located at 2708 Blazing Trail Drive from Rural Residential (RR) to Medium 

Density-Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval.  

 

Item Details 

 

Attachments 

1. Vicinity Map  

2. Application 













  
  


 

 

1924 Rezoning Conditions.doc 

 
 
  
 
 
           November 22, 2019 
2708 Blazing Trail – Rezoning Conditions        
 

Single-Family Homes 
 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are 
permitted. 

2. All single-family homes shall have a crawl space or have a raised foundation which at a 
minimum rises at least 20 inches from average grade across the front of the house to the 
finished floor level at the front door. 

3. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on 
them. 

4. The garage cannot protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade or front porch.   
5. All roofs shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs. 
6. The width of the garage doors shall be no more than 60% of the total width of the house 

and garage together. 
7. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure. 
8. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3   

decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  
• Windows 
• Bay window  
• Recessed window 
• Decorative window 
• Trim around the windows 
• Wrap around porch or side porch 
• Two or more building materials 
• Decorative brick/stone 
• Decorative trim 
• Decorative shake 
• Decorative air vents on gable 
• Decorative gable 
• Decorative cornice 
• Column 
• Portico 
• Balcony 
• Dormer 

9. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a 
minimum of three color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter and accent 
colors complementing the siding color. 

10. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent 
covered porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 

11. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have 
trim around the windows. 

12. Front porches shall be a minimum of 6 feet deep. 
 



 - 2 - 

13. A minimum of one (1) residential dwelling in this development shall be constructed to 
include the installation of solar panels and a power system of at least 4 KW capacity.  The 
lots of which these homes are located shall be identified on the Master Subdivision Plat, 
which may be amended from time to time.  All other single-family detached homes shall be 
pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system. 

14. Home Owner Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of an accessory 
dwelling unit. 

 
Pedestrian Connection 

 
A pedestrian connection consisting of a 5’ wide sidewalk within a 10’ wide public access easement on 
Home Owners Association common area shall be provided from the stub of Lake Waccamaw Trail to 
Blazing Trail Drive. 

 
 

Side Setback 
 
The side yard setback for single-family lots shall be reduced from 6’ minimum with a 16’ aggregate to a 
5’ minimum with a 12’ aggregate to accommodate the pedestrian connection from Lake Waccamaw Trail 
to Blazing Trail Drive. 

 













































 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

  

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to set the Public Hearing on December 17, 2019 to designate the property located at 2708 Olive 

Chapel Road a Historic Landmark in compliance with North Carolina General Statute 160A-400.4 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

       

Attachments 

 Vicinity Map  

 Landmark Application 





C U L T U R A L
R E S O U R C E
CONSULTANTS

PREPARED FOR:
Capital Area Preservation
1101 Haynes Street, Suite 001
Raleigh, North Carolina 27604

November 2019

TOM OLIVE HOUSE LANDMARK REPORT

2708 OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD
Apex, Wake County, North Carolina



2708 OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD
Apex, Wake County, North Carolina

  Principal Investigator:
Ellen Turco, MA

  Authors:
Ellen Turco, Principal Senior Historian
Olivia Heckendorf, Architectural Historian

  Prepared by:
Richard Grubb & Associates, Inc.
106 North Avenue
Wake Forest, North Carolina 27587

  Prepared for:
Capital Area Preservation
1101 Haynes Street, Suite 001
Raleigh, North Carolina 27604

  Date:  
November 6, 2019

TOM OLIVE HOUSE LANDMARK REPORT



i

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of  Contents ..................................................................................................................................i

List of  Figures and Photo Plates ........................................................................................................ii

Application for Historic Landmark Designation ............................................................................iii

7A. Physical Description Narrative .............................................................................................7A-1

7B. Historical Background Narrative and Architectural Context ........................................... 7B-1

7C. Significance Statement ............................................................................................................ 7C-1

7D. Landmark Boundary ...............................................................................................................7D-1

7E. Bibliography .............................................................................................................................7E-1

8. Photographs ...................................................................................................................................8-1

9. Floor Plans .....................................................................................................................................9-1

10. Maps ............................................................................................................................................10-1



ii

LIST OF FIGURES AND PHOTO PLATES

FIGURES:

Figure 7.b.1:  Sketch map of  Olive Family sites in western Wake County showing the Tom 
Olive House and sites related to the extended Olive family. Map drawn by 
Irene Kittinger, circa 1988 ................................................................................................. 7B-2

Figure 7.b.2:  Archival photograph of  the Tom Olive House, undated ............................................. 7B-4

Figure 7.b.3:  1938 aerial photograph of  Wake County ........................................................................ 7B-5

Figure 7.b.4:  1959 aerial photograph of  Wake County ........................................................................ 7B-6

Figure 7.b.5:  Baucomb-Olive House, 206 S. Salem Street, Apex ....................................................... 7B-8

Figure 7.b.6:  J.M. Williams House, 4225 Green Level Wert Road, Apex .......................................... 7B-9

Figure 7.b.7:  Williams-Upchurch House, 7213 Roberts Road, Apex .............................................. 7B-10

Figure 9.1:  First floor plan by Maurer Architecture ............................................................................. 9-2

Figure 9.2:  Second floor plan by Maurer Architecture ........................................................................ 9-3

Figure 10.1:  Tom Olive House location map ........................................................................................10-2

Figure 10.2:  Aerial map showing Landmark boundary for Tom Olive House ................................10-3

PHOTO PLATES:

Plate 7.a.1:  South elevation, front of  the house .................................................................................... 8-2

Plate 7.a.2:  East elevation .........................................................................................................................8-3

Plate 7.a.3:  South elevation .......................................................................................................................8-4

Plate 7.a.4:  West elevation ........................................................................................................................8-5

Plate 7.a.5:  Porch detail .............................................................................................................................8-6

Plate 7.a.6:  Trim detail ...............................................................................................................................8-7

Plate 7.a.7:  Dining room fireplace ...........................................................................................................8-8

Plate 7.a.8:  First floor bedroom fireplace...............................................................................................8-9

Plate 7.a.9:  Second floor bedroom showing mantel, typical 5-panel door and beadboard 
wainscot .................................................................................................................................8-10



 

iii 

APPLICATION FOR HISTORIC LANDMARK DESIGNATION 
 
Preparing Your Application: 
Please use black ink or type and use paper no larger than 11” x 17” for the required supporting 
information. Capital Area Preservation (CAP) staff is available to advise in the preparation of 
applications.  
 
Filing Your Application: 
When completed, the attached application will initiate consideration of a property for 
designation as a local historic landmark. The application will enable the Wake County Historic 
Preservation Commission (WCHPC) to determine whether the property qualifies for designation. 
 
Mail the application to Capital Area Preservation, PO Box 28072, Raleigh, NC, 27611. Submitted 
materials become the property of the Wake County Government and will not be returned. 
Incomplete applications may be returned to the applicant for revision. CAP staff will contact 
applicants after receiving an application to discuss the next steps of the designation process 
(see Landmark Designation Q & A for more information). Please feel free to contact CAP with 
any questions at 919.833.6404, or e-mail at info@cappresinc.org. CAP can be found on the web 
at www.cappresinc.org.  
 

Thank you very much for your interest in protecting Wake County's historic resources! 
 
*The guidelines developed for this application are based on the evaluation process used by the 
National Register of Historic Places. National Register evaluation principles regarding criteria, 
category classifications, and integrity have been adapted for local applications. 
 
1. Name of Property 

Historic Name: Tom Olive House 

Current Name:  Tom Olive House  

Location 

Please include the full street address of the property, including its local planning jurisdiction. 
Wake County Property Identification (PIN) and Real Estate Identification (REID) Numbers can 
be found at the Wake County property information website at 
http://imaps.co.wake.nc.us/imaps/mainpage.htm, or by contacting the Wake County 
Planning Department. 
 
Street Address:  2708 Olive Chapel Road, Apex, Wake County, North Carolina 27502 

Planning Jurisdiction: AP  PIN Number: 0721392386 REID: 0458130 

Deed Book and Page Number: Book 017413  Page: 00435 

Current Tax Value of Property: $194,352 

2. Owner Information (If more than one, list primary contact) 

Name: Michael Ingram 

Address: 2735 NC Highway 751, Apex, North Carolina 27523 

Phone: 919-422-5690     Email: _______________________ 

Ownership (check one):  Private    Public  
 

3. Applicant/Contact Person (If other than owner) 

Name: ______________________________ 

Address: ______________________________________  

Phone: ________________        Email: ____________________ 



 

iv 

 

4. Signatures  
I have read the general information on landmark designation provided by the Wake County 
Historic Preservation Commission and affirm that I support landmark designation of the 
property defined herein. 
 
Owner:                 Date:       

Owner:                 Date:       

Owner:                 Date:       

Owner:                 Date:       

 
Applicant:                Date:       
(If different from owner) 
 

 

OFFICE USE ONLY: Received by:           Date: 



 

v 

5. General Data/Site Information 
Date of Construction and major alterations and additions: Circa 1905 

Number, type, and date of construction of outbuildings: None 

A. Approximate lot size or acreage: 0.66 acres 

B. Architect, builder, carpenter, and/or mason: Unknown 

C. Original Use: Dwelling 

D. Present Use: Dwelling 

 

6. Classification 
A. Category (select type from below): Building  

 
• Building – created principally to shelter any form of human activity (i.e. house, 

barn/stable, hotel, church, school, theater, etc.) 
• Structure - constructed usually for purposes other than creating human shelter (i.e. 

tunnel, bridge, highway, silo, etc.) 
• Object - constructions that are primarily artistic in nature. Although movable by 

nature or design, an object is typically associated with a specific setting or 
environment (i.e. monument, fountain, etc.) 

• Site - the location of a historic event, a prehistoric or historic occupation or activity, or 
a building or structure, whether standing, ruined, or vanished, where the location itself 
possesses historic, cultural, or archeological value, regardless of the value of any 
existing structure (i.e. battlefields, cemeteries, designed landscape, etc.) 

 

B. Number of Contributing and non-contributing resources on the property: 
A contributing building, site, structure, or object adds to the historic associations, historic 
architectural qualities, or archeological values for which a property is significant because it 
was present during the period of significance, relates to the documented significance of the 
property, and possesses historic integrity or is capable of yielding important information 
about the period. 

 Contributing Non-contributing 

Buildings 1 0 

Structures 0 0 

Objects 0 0 

Sites 0 0 

 
Previous field documentation (when and by whom): Wake County Historic Architecture 

Survey, Kelly Lally, 1990-1991; Wake Municipalities Phase III Survey, Heather Wagner Slane, 

2017 

Please contact the Survey Coordinator at the State Historic Preservation Office to determine 
if the property is included in the Wake County survey (919.807.6573). 
 
National Register Status and date (listed, eligible, study list): N/A 

Please contact the National Register Coordinator at the State Historic Preservation Office to 
determine National Register Status (919.807.6587). 



 

vi 

7. Supporting Documentation (Please type or print and attach to application on separate sheets. 
Please check box when item complete.) 

  
A. Physical Description Narrative of All Resources on the Site  
For primary resource, describe overall form, number of stories, construction materials, roof 
shape, porches, windows, doors, chimney, important decorative elements, and significant 
interior features whether or not the interior is being proposed for designation. Provide 
number, type and location of outbuildings, with an entry on each that includes construction 
date and brief description. Provide description of landscape and setting of all buildings, 
structures, etc. on the property.  
 
B. Historical Background Narrative  
Chronology of the property and its owners, including any historical events or historic persons 
associated with the property, presented in paragraph form. 
 
C. Significance Statement  
In a clear, concise statement tell why the property meets the criteria for local designation. 
Please refer to pages 47-48 in The Handbook for Historic Preservation Commissions in North 
Carolina when preparing statement of significance. A link to the Handbook can be found on 
the SHPO website site at http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/commhome.htm. Specifically refer to 
the Criteria for Significance and Aspects of Integrity. Also state if the property rises to the level 
of significance needed for designation when compared with all others of its style, type and 
period in the county, town or city. For example, a building or structure might be a 
community’s only surviving examples of Greek Revival architecture or it may be a unique 
local interpretation of the Arts and Crafts movement. 
 
D. Landmark Boundary  
Describe the land area to be designated, address any prominent landscape features. 
Clearly explain the significance of the land area proposed for designation and its historical 
relationship to the building(s), structure(s) or object(s) located within the property boundary 
or, in the case of sites, the historical event or events that make the land area significant. For 
buildings and structures, the designated land area may represent part of or the entire original 
parcel boundaries, or may encompass vegetative buffers or important outbuildings. For 
objects, the designated land area may continue to provide the object’s historic context (i.e., 
a statue’s historic park setting). For sites, the designated area may encompass a landscape 
that retains its historic integrity (i.e. a battlefield encompassing undisturbed historic view 
sheds). 
 
E. Bibliography   
Bibliography of sources consulted. 

  

8. Photographs  
All photographs are required to be digital, in JPEG (.jpg) format, and submitted on a CD or 
DVD. Please note the following requirements: 
 
• Minimum Standard: 6.5” x 4.5” at a resolution of 300ppi (a pixel dimension of 1950 x 1350) 
• File Size: There is no maximum or minimum for the file size of an image; however, smaller 

file sizes may be necessary when emailing images.  
• Proof Sheet: Proof sheets are required to show what is on a CD or DVD without having to 

load the disk. Proofs may be printed in either color or black and white as long as the 
images are crisp and legible. There should be a minimum of four and a maximum of six 
proofs per 8.5” x 11” sheet, with no image smaller than 3.25” on its longest side. Proofs 
should be labeled as they appear on the disk.  

• Naming Images: Please label image files for the Local Designation Application as  
 follows: 
 

LM_PropertyName Description.jpg  
Example: LM__Smith House_front façade.jpg) 



 

vii 

 
 
For buildings and structures, include exterior photos of all elevations of the primary resource 
and any other contributing and non-contributing resources; photos of details of significant 
exterior features, such as notable trim; photos of the main building or structure within its 
setting; photos of each significant landscape feature; and photos of notable interior spaces, 
significant trim and other features. For objects, include a view of the object within its setting, 
as well as a variety of representative views. For sites, include overall views and any significant 
details. 
 

9. Floor Plan (for buildings and structures)  
Please include a floor plan showing the original layout, approximate dimensions of all rooms, 
and any additions (with dates) to the building or structure. Drawings do not have to be 
professionally produced nor do they need to be to exact scale, but should accurately depict 
the layout of the property. (Building sketches from the Wake County property information 
website are not acceptable.) 
  

10. Maps  
Include two (2) maps: one (1) clearly indicating the location of the property in relation to 
nearby streets and other buildings, and one (1) showing the proposed landmark boundary of 
the property and all significant resources. Tax maps with the boundaries of the property are 
preferred, but survey or sketch maps are acceptable. Please show street names and 
numbers and all structures on the property. 
 

 
 



 7A-1

7A. PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION NARRATIVE

SE
C

TI
O

N
 7

A

Tom Olive House, ca. 1905

The Tom Olive House (WA1043) is located at 2708 Olive Chapel Road in Apex, Wake County, 
North Carolina, approximately four miles from historic downtown Apex. The house faces 
south and is positioned roughly in the center of  an irregularly shaped 0.66-acre lot on the 
north side of  the road. In 2018, the parcel was subdivided from the Smith Farm residential 
subdivision, which is currently being developed on the land surrounding the parcel.

The lot is level and bounded by Olive Chapel Road on south side, Farmhouse Drive on the 
north side, Livestock Alley and a reserved open space lot for the Smith Farm subdivision on 
the east side. A gravel driveway at the western edge of  the parcel accesses the property via 
Olive Chapel Road. The driveway bends to curve around the house and terminates at the 
parcel’s east edge1. Two mature magnolia trees, which are visible on a 1938 aerial photograph, 
are situated in the front yard between the house and Olive Chapel Road. Other than these 
trees, there are no significant landscape features or outbuildings associated with the history of  
the dwelling as an anchor of  a southwestern Wake County family farm.

Exterior

The Tom Olive House was built circa 1905 and expanded in 2019. The 1905 section is a 
roughly H-shaped, two-story wood frame building with a one-story front porch (Plates 7.a.1 – 
7.a.6). This core section consists of  parallel east and west wings joined by a central connector 
containing the interior stair hall. In 2019, a second story was added on top of  the formerly one-
story east wing. The east wing was extended to the rear to equal the length of  the west wing. 
The east wing addition mirrors the original west wing with its cornice returns and beadboard 
soffits. A 2019 one-story shed roof  addition projects from the rear (north) elevation. Corbelled 
interior chimneys rises from the roof  ridge of  both the east and west wings.

The dwelling’s restrained Queen Anne detailing is concentrated on its symmetrical façade, 
which is dominated by the front gables of  the east and west wings. The wings have cut-
away corners which create two projecting, three-sided bays on either side of  the recessed 
central connector wing. The cut-away corners are decorated with gracefully curved brackets 
and pendants. The gable ends are embellished with returns, a wide plain frieze board, and fish 
scale shingles. Set under the peak of  each front gable is a pair of  arched louvered vents.

A one-story porch with a deck-on-hip roof  extends across the front elevation. The porch is 
notable for its original vernacular Queen Anne decorative elements. The elements include six 
support posts with curved spandrels. The three-part posts have a turned central section with 
rectangular top and bottom sections. This treatment is repeated in a truncated manner on 
the porch balustrades, which consist of  closely spaced balusters set between a plain handrail 
and bottom rail between the porch posts. The porch retains its original beadboard ceiling. In 
2019, the porch floor was replaced with non-historic pressure treated lumber. The front door 
is tucked beneath the porch and centered in the recessed area between the two wings. The 
current, non-historic single-leaf  door is scheduled to be replaced with a double-leaf  door 
similar to the original ones that were removed at an unknown date. Double-light side lights 
flank the door which is surmounted by a double-light transom. 

The main block of  the house, the front porch, and two-story addition rest on a raised brick 
foundation of  brick piers infilled with a later brick curtain wall. The foundation of  the east ell 
and the shed roof  rear addition is supported by concrete block that has been parged over. All 
the roof  planes are covered with a metal roof  installed in 2019. The main block of  the house 
retains its original two-over-two double-hung wood sash windows. The four windows on the 
angled walls of  the front bays are one-over-one.

1   The semicircular drive shown on the aerial photograph in Figure 10.2 does not reflect present conditions.



 7A-2

Original plain weatherboard siding covers the house. The east ell is covered with newly milled boards 
that match the original ones. The soffits are finished with beadboard. Plain corner boards are found 
throughout the house. All window and door openings exhibit plain wood surrounds with drip caps. 
The majority of  the two-over-two double-hung wood sash windows remain in their original openings. 
New windows will be installed on the shed roof  rear addition.

Interior

The Tom Olive House has four rooms on the first floor and three rooms on the second floor (Figures 
9.1 and 9.2) (Plates 7.a.7 – 7.a.9). The rooms are oriented on either side of  a central stair hall on both 
floors. The first floor has a dining room and kitchen on the east side of  the hall and a living room 
and bedroom on the west side. A bathroom was added at the end of  the central hall in 2019. The 
house retains much of  its original materials including vertical waist-high beadboard wainscot, tongue-
and-groove wood flooring, beadboard ceilings, and five-panel doors. The walls of  the center hall are 
covered with diagonal beadboard wainscot.

Mantels are an important stylistic component of  the house. Each of  the four main rooms on the first 
story has a fireplace. The mantels of  the dining room and living room are similar and feature a paneled 
lintel with a central raised medallion and plasters stacked with roundels, modillions, incised geometric 
designs and foliate carvings. In comparison, the first-floor bedroom mantel is plain with chamfered 
posts supporting a plain lintel. There are three fireplaces on the second floor. Each mantel is identical 
and features a lintel with a raised rectangular panel flanked by sawn pilasters. 



 7B-1

7B. HISTORICAL BACKGROUND NARRATIVE AND 
ARCHITECTURAL CONTEXT

SE
C

TI
O

N
 7

B

The Olives first settled in western Wake County, North Carolina during the early 1800s 
(Irene Kittinger 2019). By 1900, the large, extended family spread out in the area west of  
Apex to Chatham County, and from US 64 south to US 1 (Figure 7.b.1). The survey records 
located in the North Carolina State Historic Preservation Office list 13 historic properties 
that are affiliated with the Olive family. One of  these properties is the circa1905 Tom Olive 
House (SHPO Survey Site No. WA 1043) located at 2708 Olive Chapel Road, which is 
the subject of  this local landmark designation report. This report outlines the lives of  two 
couples, Cader and Louisa Hunter Olive and their son and daughter-in-law Thomas Alsey 
“Tom” Olive and Caldenna “Enna” Markham Olive. Cader and Louisa assembled a farm 
of  over 200 acres in western Wake County where Tom and Enna would build their Queen 
Anne-style home. 

Like most Wake County residents of  the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, the Olives 
were engaged in agricultural work. They were also leaders in the educational and religious 
life of  their immediate community. Cader and Louisa founded a community church, which 
became Olive Chapel Baptist Church, a cemetery, and a school in the 1850s. Their strong 
beliefs in the value of  education were passed down through the generations as all of  Tom 
and Enna’s children were college educated, which was a notable accomplishment for a farm 
family in the early twentieth century. Tom and Enna’s children attended North Carolina 
Women’s College, Meredith College, Wake Forest College, and North Carolina State College. 

The land associated with the Tom Olive House came into the family in 1846 when Cader 
Olive (1813-1904) purchased 264 acres on “both sides of  Big Beaver Creek” from his father’s 
sister, Siddy Richardson, and her husband for $152 (Wake County Deed Book [WCDB] 88; 
page150). Cader and Louisa Hunter Olive (1817-1898) built a log dwelling on the tract on 
the south side of  Olive Chapel Road. The Olives’ log homestead stood until about 1976 
and is not included in the 13 historic structures associated with the Olives (Belvin and 
Riggs 1983:371). The couple had 11 children and supported the family through farming 
and sawmilling. Cader and Louisa played a role in the development and growth of  the local 
community, which became known as “Olive Chapel.” The couple donated materials for the 
construction of  the Olive Chapel Baptist Church located approximately 1.5 miles west of  
their home in 1850. What began as a family burial ground near the church grew into a large 
community cemetery containing hundreds of  graves. They also established a school for local 
white children near the church. The church was the social and religious nexus of  the Olive 
Chapel community which maintains an active congregation today.

In 1850, Cader owned at least two enslaved persons, a 22-year-old black woman and a 2-year-
old old female child described as mulatto (US Federal Census Slave Schedule, 1850). The 
Cader and Louisa’s assets and social status in their community placed them in the “large farm 
owner” socioeconomic group as defined by historian Kelly A. Lally. They were grouped with 
other farmers who owned several hundred acres but fewer than 20 slaves. This group was 
just below the planter class which included people who owned large, productive tracts in the 
more fertile northern and eastern parts of  the county and held over 20 enslaved persons. The 
enslaved, slave-less yeoman farmers with fewer than 200 acres, and landless tenant farmers 
and laborers made up the bottom of  the half  of  Wake County’s antebellum socioeconomic 
ladder (Lally 1994:15–17). The Olives were well-off  but were not among Wake County’s 
economic elite. 

Tom (1853-1926) and Enna (1860-1918) Olive were married in 1884. The young couple lived 
with the elder Olives in the log house. They benefitted from Cader and Louisa’s status and, 
based on the long-term nature of  their shared living arrangements, it can be assumed that 
the older and younger Olives remained close throughout their lives. Tom and Enna had two 



 7B-2

Figure 7.b.1: Sketch map of  Olive Family sites in western Wake County showing the Tom Olive House and sites related to the extended Olive family. Map 
drawn by Irene Kittinger, circa 1988 (Source: Elizabeth Reid Murray Collection, Box 344, Olivia Raney Local History Library). 

Tom Olive House

0

Miles

1.5
-

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 7B-3

children while living in Cader and Louisa’s log house. Their first child was born in 1885 and did not 
survive his infancy. A second son, Thomas Homer (1886-1954), was born soon after. Around 1887, 
Tom embarked on a short-lived career in the lumber industry which took the young family away from 
Wake County. They first relocated to Manly, near Southern Pines, to help Enna’s brothers operate a 
sawmill. It was in Manly that children Loula Bryan (1888-?), Luscious Bunyan “Bun” (1890-?), and 
Walter Wendell (c. 1893-1969) were born. The Olives moved again around 1891, this time to South 
Georgia, to work in the turpentine industry. 

In 1894, Cader and Louisa sold two tracts of  land “on the Waters of  Big Beaver Creek in White Oak 
Township” to Tom and Enna for $1,000 (WCDB 190; page 347). The first parcel was identified as 
the “home tract” which corresponds with the 264 acres purchased by Cader and Louisa in 1846. The 
second tract is 2.5 acres on the south side of  Beaver Creek that Cader had purchased from William 
Branch in 1860 (WCDB 38; page151).

The younger Olives’ 1894 purchase of  the family homeplace likely coincided with their return to 
North Carolina. They moved back to the log house with Cader and Louisa, expanded it, and had 
three more children: James Gordon (1897-1969), Nellie Irene (1900-1993), and Rachel Royster (1904-
1990). Once back home, Tom and Enna took over farming from Cader and Louisa (1900 US Federal 
Census). The Olive farm produced a variety of  crops such as tobacco, cotton, corn, wheat, and oats. 
Black Angus beef  cattle, colts, sheep, chickens and hogs were raised. Louisa Olive died in 1898. Cader 
survived until 1904 (Belvin and Riggs 1983:371–372).

Around 1905 Tom and Enna completed construction of  a new house on the north side of  Olive 
Chapel Road across the road from the log house the extended family had shared since the mid-1880s. 
This is the dwelling that became known as the Tom Olive House (WA 1043). Its precise construction 
date is unknown. Stylistic clues and family oral traditions date it to around 1905 (Figure 7.b.2). This 
would place the house’s construction to near the time of  Cader’s death, so it is not known if  he was 
involved in the design of  the new house, or if  he survived long enough to see it completed. In 1905, 
Tom and Enna’s seven surviving children were between the ages of  2 and 19. The large house would 
have comfortably accommodated the family. Family oral history states that in 1908, Tom had a tennis 
court built for the family in an Oak Grove near the house; however, the court is not visible on historic 
aerial photographs (Belvin and Riggs 1983:371). Aerial photographs from 1938 and 1951 show a 
cluster of  farm buildings on the south side of  Olive Chapel Road directly across from the Tom Olive 
House (Figures 7.b.3 and 7.b.4). It is possible that these buildings were constructed proximate to the 
family’s original log house and that around 1905, when the family moved to the “modern” house on 
the north side of  the road, the log house was converted for agricultural purposes. Outbuildings around 
the circa 1905 house on the north side of  the Olive Chapel Road are notably absent on the 1938 and 
1951 aerial photographs, suggesting that domestic and work areas were intentionally separated from 
one another.

Tom and Enna chose the Queen Anne style of  architecture for their new home. The style was popular 
nationally, was a tasteful statement of  the family’s local status, and was well suited for its prominent 
location on Olive Chapel Road. The Olives were doing what many across the county were doing in the 
early years of  the twentieth century, replacing dated, and in some cases primitive, antebellum houses 
with modern houses that referenced the latest style of  architecture. The size and style of  the Tom 
Olive House suggests that the family was doing well financially at this time.

Nationally, the Queen Anne style replaced the Greek Revival, Italianate and picturesque styles of  
the Victorian period that were popular, at least in vernacular form, across North Carolina in the 
late 1800s. Queen Anne houses are characterized by their irregular and often asymmetrical massing 
and the exuberant use of  complex decorative components. The advent of  light “balloon” framing, 
which facilitated the style’s complex massing and efficient methods for the mass production and rail 
distribution of  decorative building elements, enabled the spread of  the style from about 1890 to its 
gradual replacement with the Colonial Revival style beginning around 1910. Decorative exterior trim 



 7B-4

Figure 7.b.2: Archival photograph of  the Tom Olive House, undated
(Source: Capital Area Preservation).

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 7B-5

Figure 7.b.3: 1938 aerial photograph of  Wake County
(Source: USDA Historical Aerial Photos, UNC Libraries).

Tom Olive House

Richardson Road

Olive Chapel Road

Cader Olive
House Site

0

Feet

300-

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 7B-6

Figure 7.b.4: 1959 aerial photograph of  Wake County
(Source: USDA Historical Aerial Photos, UNC Libraries).

Tom Olive House

Richardson Road

Olive Chapel Road

Cader Olive
House Site

0

Feet

300-

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 7B-7

such as finials, vergeboards, sawn cornice brackets, pendants, and patterned shingles and faux half  
timbering, were common. An elaborately decorated one-story porch with turned posts and balustrades 
was often the focal point of  the facade. The porch could also feature a punched or spindled frieze, or 
on more modest houses, sawn brackets or spandrels. Double-leaf  entry doors were common, often 
with frosted or stained-glass windows over raised panels. Window and vent openings were often 
arched (McAlester and McAlester 2000:263–268). 

In Wake County’s towns during the early twentieth century, the Queen Anne style was popular as 
a statement of  the taste and affluence of  their most prominent residents. However, the style was 
interpreted vernacularly in rural areas, often as simple, traditional boxy house forms, such as one- and 
two-story “Triple-A” houses, embellished with mass-produced decorative trims. In Apex, five miles 
from the Tom Olive House, the circa 1889 Baucom-Olive House, a one-story L-plan cottage, has been 
designated an Apex Historic Landmark as one of  the town’s “most distinctive” examples of  the Queen 
Anne style” (Capital Area Preservation 2013a)(Figure 7.b.5). Another Apex Historic Landmark is the 
circa 1909 J.M. Williams House at 4525 Green Level Church Road (Figure 7.b.6). This ornately detailed 
and turreted house is significant as a “unique high-style late Queen Anne farm house” (Capital Area 
Preservation 2013b). A third landmark property, the circa 1905 Williams-Upchurch House located at 
7312 Roberts Road in Apex, is one of  the most similar houses to the Tom Olive House (Figure 7.b.7). 
Built around the same time, both houses possess similar distinctive massing: a transverse main block 
with twin projecting front gables. The Tom Olive House and these three historic landmark properties 
represent the evolution of  the Queen Anne style in western Wake County from its first appearance in 
the 1880s to its gradual replacement by the Colonial Revival style beginning around 1910. In fact, the 
Tom Olive House is a purer representation of  the late vernacular Queen Anne type since its turned 
porch posts are more Queen Anne in style than that of  the Colonial Revival porch columns on the 
Upchurch-Williams House. As Wake County is currently nearing the end of  its transition from an 
agrarian to a suburban landscape, surviving historic buildings such as the Tom Olive House hold even 
more value for the understanding of  life during a particular time and place. 

Enna Olive died in 1919. The 1920 census listed Alsey T. Olive as a widowed head of  household with 
four children between the ages of  16 and 26 and his mother-in-law also residing in the home (1920 US 
Federal Census). Tom supported the family through “general farming” and owned the home and farm 
outright. Tom married Mattie Overton (1875-1948) sometime after 1920 and died of  “myocarditis” at 
the age of  73 on October 28, 1926 (North Carolina Bureau of  Vital Statistics 1926). He was buried in 
the original Olive family cemetery across from the Olive Chapel Baptist Church. Tom willed one-third 
of  his “real and personal property” to Mattie “for her life or widowhood” (Wake County Will Book 
J; page 189). Mattie was also to receive one-third of  the rents from the farm along with the residence 
and furniture. Two-thirds of  Tom’s property was to be divided among his seven surviving children. 
Mattie’s one-third share was to be divided equally among them when she died or remarried. 

It is not known if  Mattie Olive stayed in the house after Tom’s death. She died in 1948 in Richmond, 
Virginia. In 1928, she and several of  Tom’s heirs (L.B. Olive [assumed to be Tom’s son Lucious 
Bunyan] and wife Nell, Nellie Goodwin and husband Carl, and Rachel Olive, unmarried) sold 292 
acres to Tom’s sons Walter and James Gordon Olive for $1,500 (WCDB 541; page 539). Walter and 
James had been operating a dairy farm near Southern Pines since 1921 but James returned to run the 
family farm and occupy the house (Belvin and Riggs 1983:371). Walter relinquished his ownership to 
James via a quit claim proceeding in 1944 (WCDB 913; page 639).

James Gordon Olive and his wife Pauline A. Olive resided in the Tom Olive House from about 1930 
to the 1980s. The 1940 US Census lists the couple living on the farm with daughters Betty, seven years 
old, and Sherley (sic) four years old (1940 US Federal Census). Sometime after 1940, a third daughter 
named Mary was born. The census valued the dwelling at $1,700 and James Olive’s farm income from 
the previous year was $3,000. In addition to farming, James worked for the state Soil Conservation 
Service promoting the construction of  farm ponds throughout Wake and Lee counites (Belvin and 
Riggs 1983:371). The numerous manmade ponds on the north and south sides of  Olive Chapel Road 
are vestiges of  his efforts. 



 7B-8

Figure 7.b.5: Baucomb-Olive House, 206 S. Salem Street, Apex
(Courtesy: Capital Area Preservation).

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 7B-9

Figure 7.b.6: J.M. Williams House, 4225 Green Level Wert Road, Apex
(Courtesy: Capital Area Preservation).

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 7B-10

Figure 7.b.7: Williams-Upchurch House, 7213 Roberts Road, Apex
(Courtesy: Capital Area Preservation).

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 7B-11

James Gordon Olive died in 1969. Beginning around 1980, Pauline began deeding fractional shares 
of  the 186-acre farm to her daughter Shirley Olive Eakes Carraway. Shirley and her second husband 
Harry F. Carraway eventually occupied the house and about 10 acres. The remainder of  the farm 
acreage was divided among her sons (Smith 2019). In 2017, the developer and homebuilder Lennar 
Carolinas assembled 225 acres from Shirley Carraway and the Smith family in order to build the 500-
home Smith Farms residential subdivision (Hoyle 2017). 

In 2019, Mike Ingram purchased the 0.66–acre parcel containing the Tom Olive House from Lennar 
Carolinas. Mr. Ingram has undertaken a full restoration of  the house using the Secretary of  the Interior’s 
Standards for Rehabilitation and plans by historic preservation architects Maurer Architecture as 
guides. Capital Area Preservation holds a historic preservation easement on the house. The easement 
will protect its historic character in perpetuity.



 7C-1

7C. SIGNIFICANCE STATEMENT

SE
C

TI
O

N
 7

C

The circa 1905 Tom Olive House, located at 2708 Olive Chapel Road in Apex, Wake 
County, North Carolina, is locally significant for its Queen Anne architecture. The house 
is historically associated with the Olive family, a multi-generational family of  successful 
farmers and community leaders in western Wake County. The house possesses architectural 
significance as one of  a dwindling number of  surviving and intact rural Queen Anne-style 
houses in western Wake County. Locally, Queen Anne houses borrowed decorative elements 
from their high-style, urban counterparts and paired down these elements and applied them 
to more modest house forms. Key Queen Anne-influenced features of  the Tom Olive 
House are its fishtail shingles in the front gables, the sawn brackets and pendants that top 
the cut-way bays, and a showpiece front porch of  turned posts and balusters and arched 
spandrels. While the house’s historic agricultural setting has been compromised by suburban 
development, it remains on its original site on land that was owned by the Olive family for 
171 years, from 1846 to 2017. The dwelling retains excellent overall physical integrity and 
has experienced very limited changes to the exterior. The interior retains its original floor 
plan and much of  the interior finish materials have survived. Its preserved state informs 
us about popular tastes, vernacular adaptations, and locally available and prevalent building 
materials and techniques that upper middle-class families used in early twentieth-century 
western Wake County. 



 7D-1

7D. LANDMARK BOUNDARY

SE
C

TI
O

N
 7

D

The Tom Olive House is situated on a 0.66–acre parcel at 2708 Olive Chapel Road in Apex, 
Wake County, North Carolina. The house, built circa 1905, is the only structure on the parcel 
and is the key contributing resource to the landmark. The two mature magnolia trees in front 
of  the house on the south side were planted around the time of  the house’s construction and 
are categorized as contributing resources to the historic landmark. The landmark boundary is 
the same as the legal parcel (PIN 0721392386) and encompasses the land around the house, 
which is all that remains of  the Olives’ farm, that at one time was over 200 acres.



 7E-1

7E. BIBLIOGRAPHY

SE
C

TI
O

N
 7

E

Ancestry.com
2004 1850 United States Federal Census - Slave Schedules [database on-line]. Provo, UT, USA: 

Ancestry.com Operations Inc.
2004 1900 United States Federal Census - Slave Schedules [database on-line]. Provo, UT, USA: 

Ancestry.com Operations Inc.
2010 1920 United States Federal Census - Slave Schedules [database on-line]. Provo, UT, USA: 

Ancestry.com Operations Inc. 
2012 1940 United States Federal Census [database online]. Provo, UT, USA: Ancestry.com 

Operations Inc.

Belvin, Lynne, and Hariette Riggs
1983 Wake County Heritage. Winston-Salem, North Carolina: Wake County Geological Society.

Capital Area Preservation
2013a Baucom-Olive House | Capital Area Preservation |. Capital Area Preservation. http://

capitalareapreservation.com/th_gallery/baucom-olive-house/, accessed February 8, 2019.
2013b James Madison Williams House | Capital Area Preservation |. Capital Area Preservation. http://

capitalareapreservation.com/th_gallery/james-madison-williams-house/, accessed February 
8, 2019.

Hoyle, Amanda
2017 Lennar Makes ‘Historic’ $26M Land Buy for Development in Apex. Triangle Business Journal, 

April 19. 

Irene Kittinger
2019 Irene Kittinger Personal Communication with Ellen Turco. February.

Lally, Kelly A.
1994 The Historic Architecture of  Wake County, North Carolina. Raleigh, North Carolina: Wake County 

Government.

McAlester, Virginia, and Lee McAlester
2000 A Field Guide to American Houses. New York: Alfred A. Knopf.

North Carolina Bureau of  Vital Statistics
1926 Alsey Thomas Olive Death Certificate. North Carolina State Board of  Health.

Smith, Staley Email to Ellen Turco
2019 Old Olive House.
 
Wake County Clerk of  Court
n.d. Wake County Will Book J. Retrieved from Microfilm Collection at Olivia Raney Local History 

Library, Raleigh, North Carolina.

Wake County Register of  Deeds
n.d. Wake County Deed Books. Retrieved from http://rod.wakegov.com.



 8-1

8. PHOTOGRAPHS

SE
C

TI
O

N
 8



 8-2

Plate 7.a.1: South elevation, front of  the house.

Photo view: North

Photographer: Olivia Heckendorf

Date: October 30, 2019

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 8-3

Plate 7.a.2: East elevation.

Photo view: West

Photographer: Olivia Heckendorf

Date: October 30, 2019

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 8-4

Plate 7.a.3: South elevation.

Photo view: North

Photographer: Olivia Heckendorf

Date: October 30, 2019

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 8-5

Plate 7.a.4: West elevation.

Photo view: East

Photographer: Olivia Heckendorf

Date: October 30, 2019

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 8-6

Plate 7.a.5: Porch detail.

Photo view: North

Photographer: Olivia Heckendorf

Date: October 30, 2019

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 8-7

Plate 7.a.6: Trim detail. 

Photo view: North

Photographer: Olivia Heckendorf

Date: October 30, 2019

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 8-8

Plate 7.a.7: Dining room fireplace.

Photo view: North

Photographer: Olivia Heckendorf

Date: October 30, 2019

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 8-9

Plate 7.a.8: First floor bedroom fireplace.

Photo view: South

Photographer: Olivia Heckendorf

Date: October 30, 2019

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 8-10

Plate 7.a.9: Second floor bedroom showing mantel, typical 5-panel door and beadboard wainscot.

Photo view: Northwest

Photographer: Olivia Heckendorf

Date: October 30, 2019

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 9-1

9. FLOOR PLANS

SE
C

TI
O

N
 9



 9-2

Figure 9.1: First floor plan by Maurer Architecture.

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 9-3

Figure 9.2: Second floor plan by Maurer Architecture.

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 10-1

10. MAPS

SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

0



 10-2

Figure 10.1: Tom Olive House location map
(World Street Map, ESRI 2016).

0

Feet

2000-

Tom Olive House

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 10-3

Figure 10.2: Aerial map showing Landmark boundary for Tom Olive House
(from Google Earth, Imagery date 2/4/2019).

OLIVE CHAPEL RD

LIVESTOCK ALLEY

FARMHOUSE DR

BARN DOOR DR

Landmark Boundary for
Tom Olive House

0

Feet

100-

WAKE

JOHNSTON

DURHAM

FRANKLIN

HARNETT

GRANVILLE

CHATHAM

LEE

ORANGE

NASH

VANCE

CULTURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

  

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to set the Public Hearing on December 17, 2019 to de-landmark the property located at 4525 Green 

Level West Road a Historic Landmark in compliance with North Carolina General Statute 160A-400.4 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

     The house known as the James Madison Williams House caught fire on May 22, 2019 and was a total loss. 

  

Attachments 

 Vicinity Map  

 Landmark Application 





 
 

North Carolina Department of Natural and Cultural Resources 
State Historic Preservation Office 

Ramona M. Bartos, Administrator 
Governor Roy Cooper                             Office of Archives and History  
Secretary Susi H. Hamilton                                                     Deputy Secretary Kevin Cherry 

                                                                                                    

Location: 109 East Jones Street, Raleigh NC 27601     Mailing Address: 4617 Mail Service Center, Raleigh NC 27699-4617   Telephone/Fax: (919) 807-6570/807-6599 

November 7, 2019 

 

Gary Roth 

Capital Area Preservation, Inc.  

P.O. Box 28072 

Raleigh, NC 27611 

 

RE: Proposed de-designation of the James Madison Williams House, 4525 Green Level West Road, 

Apex, Wake County 

 

Dear Mr. Roth: 

 

Thank you for notifying our office of the proposed de-designation of the James Madison Williams House 

located at 4525 Green Level West Road in Apex. We understand from your email of Thursday, October 24, 

2019, that the property was tragically lost due to a fire several months ago. Although the six outbuildings 

associated with the property remain, we understand that without the principle property these structures do 

not possess the special character and integrity for local landmark designation. Thus, the proposed de-

designation of the property appears to be appropriate.  

 

We have updated our records to reflect that the James Madison Williams House is no longer extant. We 

request a copy of the de-designation ordinance to include in our files once it is available.  

 

This letter serves as our comments on the proposed de-designation of the James Madison Williams House. 

Please contact me at 919-814-6575 should you have any questions about our comments. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Amber E. Stimpson 

Local Preservation Commissions / CLG Coordinator 

 

CC: Commission Chair 

 

Enclosure 

 
 

















General

Alarm Time

04:32:14

Enroute

04:34:15

Arrival

04:42:39

Last Unit Cleared

15:35:52

Time Controlled

With PatientEMS Dispatch EMS Enroute EMS ArrivalEMS Unit

Zip Code

27523

Number/Milepost

4525

Apt./Suit/Room

Property ID

4525 GREEN LEVEL WEST RD Apex

District/Box

County

Times

Location Type

1 - Street address

State

NC - North Carolina

Exposure

0

Incident #

190001586

Incident Date

5/22/2019

FDID

09205

State

NC 19-001584

CAD #

Building fire

Incident Type

111

Crossing street

Station

 5

Shift

A

Street or Highway

GREEN LEVEL WEST RD

City

Apex

Apex, Cary and North Chatham Fire Departments responded to a structure fire at 4525 Greenlevel West Rd. 
Cary Engine 8 was first on scene and reported heavy fire showing and established command. Cary Battalion 2 
was the first chief officer on scene and assumed command from Engine 8. Due to the level of fire involvment all 
fire attack was defensive from the exterior of the structure. The only occupant was able to escape before any fire 
department resources arrived. There were no reported injuries to civilian or fire service personnel. Fire 
department units remained on scene until Wake County fire marshals completed their investigation, at that point 
the property was turned back over to the owners.

Narrative

Number/Milepost

Event / Call Time

04:31:02

Incident Action

11 Extinguishment by fire service personnel

86 Investigate

Page 1 of 7



Area of Fire Origin

UU Undetermined

Heat Source

UU Undetermined

UU

Item First Ignition

Undetermined

Type of Material First Ignited

uu Undetermined

 Ignition

Brand Model

Serial Number Year

Equipment Power Source

 Equipment Involved

Total of Buildings Involved 1 Total Acres Burned Less Than One Acre Burned

Age

 If Age is a Factor

 On Site Material

Human Factors Gender

Fire

MakeProperty Type

StateModel Year License Plate VIN

Involvement Type

 Mobile Property Involved

 Factor Contributing To Ignition  Human Factors Contributing To Ignition 

 Suppression Factors

Cause of Ignition

U - Cause undetermined after investigation

Equipment Portability

UU Undetermined N - None

411 Delayed detection of fire

412 Delayed reporting of fire

Page 2 of 7



Structure Fire

Length Width Square Feet

3414

Floor of Origin

2
ORX

 Main Floor Size

Stories Above Grade

2

Stories Below Grade

0

Minor Significant Extreme Heavy

2

 Stories Flame Damage Building Height

Detector Presence

1 - Present

Detector Type

1 - Smoke

Detector Power Supply

U - Undetermined

Detector Operation

2 - Detector operated

Detector Effectiveness

1 - Detector alerted occupants -  

Detector Failure Reason

AES Presence

N - None Present

AES Type AES Operation

AES Failure Reason Number Of Sprinklers

Structure Type

1 - Enclosed building
Structure Status

2 - In normal use

Fire Spread

4 - Confined to building of origin

Arson

Container Ignition/Delay Device

Fuel

Property Ownership

Case Status Availability Of Material First Ignited

Extentof Fire Involvement on Arrival Entry Method

General Information

Incendiary Device

Suspected Motivation Factors Apparent Group Involvement

Other Information

Initial Observations Laboratories Used

Other Investigative Information

Junvenile Information

Page 3 of 7



Property
Number of Residential Units: 1

Property $500,000.00

Contents $250,000.00

Property $500,000.00

Contents $250,000.00

Property Use

419 1 or 2 family dwelling

Mixed Property Use

65 - Farm use

HazMat Release

Detector Status

1 - Detector alerted occupants

 Estimated Dollar Value and Losses

PRE-INCIDENT VALUES

LOSSES

 Property Use / HazMat / Detector Status

(If no loss, leave blank)

Is Residential

Mutual Aid

Custom Department Identifier Mutual Aid Purpose

State

NC

 Agency Incident #

19-0004425

Agency Information

FDID

09203

Aid

Fire Apparatus Provided 6

Fire Personnel Provided 21

EMS Apparatus Provided

EMS Personnel Provided

Rescue Apparatus Provided

Rescue Personnel Provided

Other Apparatus Provided

Other Personnel Provided

Fire Department 

Cary Fire Department

Notify Date/Time Cancel Date/Time Arrival Date/Time Cleared Date/Time

Page 4 of 7



Response

12:09:0404:44:2104:34:3504:32:15 04:32:15

Apparatus Narrative

BATT5 of type Chief officer Car responded after receiving a STRUCTURE 
FIRE-SINGLE RESIDENT call at 05/22/19 04:32:15.  Apparatus went enroute 
at 05/22/19 04:34:35.  arrived on site at 05/22/19 04:44:21. after performing 
Incident command.  by Michael G Beasley,

- On arrival we found a single family structure well involved in fire
Crews made an exterior defensive attack due to the structure already well 
involved in fire.

Apparatus  ID Dispatch (DP) Enroute (ER) Arrival (AR) ClearedDispatch (DC)

1

# of 
Personnel

BAT5

CAD App  ID

BAT5

Actions for Apparatus

81 Incident command

Personnel Arrival Time Clear Time Actions Taken

04:44:21 12:09:04Michael Beasley

11:58:3704:42:3904:34:1504:32:14 04:32:14

Apparatus Narrative

Engine 35 arrived on scene to a working house fire. Upon arrival Cary Fire 
Department established Fire Command and initiated an exterior, defensive 
attack as the home was at least two thirds involved with fire. Engine 35's 
personnel formed a Rapid Intervention Team with Cary Rescue 7. We were 
then asked by Command to protect exposures and to extinguish the fire from 
a safe distance. We used two different attack lines that were already in use. 
We switched to a foam operation with our Pro Paks but went back to attack 
nozzles. Veasey, Wallace, and Hamilton were relieved by Dague, Cirasole, 
and Wilson after 0800. We drove the CERT Van back to Station 5.

Apparatus  ID Dispatch (DP) Enroute (ER) Arrival (AR) ClearedDispatch (DC)

3

# of 
Personnel

E35

CAD App  ID

E35

Actions for Apparatus

73 73 Provide manpower

Personnel Arrival Time Clear Time Actions Taken

04:42:39 11:58:37 73 - Provide Robert Veasey

04:42:39 11:58:37 73 - Provide Lawrence Hamilton

04:42:39 11:58:37 73 - Provide Loren Wallace

Custom Department Identifier Mutual Aid Purpose

State

NC

 Agency Incident #

1922997

Agency Information

FDID

01905

Aid

Fire Apparatus Provided 5

Fire Personnel Provided 7

EMS Apparatus Provided

EMS Personnel Provided

Rescue Apparatus Provided

Rescue Personnel Provided

Other Apparatus Provided

Other Personnel Provided

Fire Department 

North Chatham Volunteer Fire Department

Notify Date/Time Cancel Date/Time Arrival Date/Time Cleared Date/Time

Page 5 of 7



Owner /Involved Person and Entities

07:44:5605:13:1404:56:2804:45:32 04:45:32

Apparatus Narrative

TANK 1 of type Tanker & pumper combination responded after receiving a 
STRUCTURE FIRE-SINGLE RESIDENT call at 05/22/19 04:45:32.  
Apparatus went enroute at 05/22/19 04:56:28.  arrived on site at 05/22/19 
05:13:14.  Team cleared site at 05/22/19 07:44:56. after performing Provide 
water.  by Jonathon  Baker,

- What was found when you arrived on scene?
- What was done to mitigate the situation?
- What was the outcome?

Apparatus  ID Dispatch (DP) Enroute (ER) Arrival (AR) ClearedDispatch (DC)

1

# of 
Personnel

TANK31

CAD App  ID

TANK31

Actions for Apparatus

76 Provide water

Personnel Arrival Time Clear Time Actions Taken

05:13:14 07:44:56Jonathon Baker

15:35:5212:28:2711:50:4404:45:32 04:45:32

Apparatus Narrative

Did not respond

Apparatus  ID Dispatch (DP) Enroute (ER) Arrival (AR) ClearedDispatch (DC)

0

# of 
Personnel

TANK35

CAD App  ID

TANK35

15:35:5212:01:3811:50:4411:50:44 11:50:44

Apparatus Narrative

E34 of type Engine responded after receiving a STRUCTURE FIRE-SINGLE 
RESIDENT call at 05/22/19 11:50:44.  Apparatus went enroute at 05/22/19 
11:50:44.  arrived on site at 05/22/19 12:01:38.  Team cleared site at 
05/22/19 15:35:52.  by Joshua B Stone, Zachary R Lindsey,

Engine 34 stood by during investigation and cooled hot spots.

Apparatus  ID Dispatch (DP) Enroute (ER) Arrival (AR) ClearedDispatch (DC)

2

# of 
Personnel

E34

CAD App  ID

E34

Personnel Arrival Time Clear Time Actions Taken

12:01:38 15:35:52Joshua Stone

12:01:38 15:35:52Zachary Lindsey

Phone NumberOwner Full Name Person / EntityOwner / Involved Entity Name

 Williams,Eliza C 1 - Owner 1 - Person

Page 6 of 7



 Member Making Report 

 Officer In Charge

Report Completed Date

5/23/2019

Authorization

 Review 

Report Reviewed Date

5/23/2019

Member Making Report

Michael Beasley

Officer In Charge

Michael Beasley

Report Reviewed By

Michael Beasley

Officer In Charge Assignment

Battalion Chief

Member Making Assignment

Battalion Chief

CAD Details
EventDetails:  AgencyCode: AFD ReportNumber: 19001584 CadInciNumber: 190522065 NatureCode: 69E6 

NatureDescription: STRUCTURE FIRE-SINGLE RESIDENT EventPriorityCode: P PriorityDispatchDeterminant: 
69E06 LocationTypeCode: 1 StreetNumber: 4525 StreetDirection/:  StreetName: GREEN LEVEL WEST 
StreetType: RD StreetPostDirection/:  ApartmentSuite/:  ApartmentSuiteUnfiltered/:  FullAddress: 4525 GREEN 
LEVEL WEST RD CityCode: APEX CityCodeDescription: APEX State: NC ZipCode: 27523 SiteName/:  
SiteCADKey/:  SiteTypeCode/:  XStreetDirection/:  XStreetName/:  XStreetType/:  XStreetPostDirection/:  
EventLatitude: 35.76897 EventLongitude: -78.93483 SPGeox: 2019335.00 SPGeoy: 734785.00 DMSLatitude: 35 
46 8.29 N DMSLongitude: 78 56 5.39 W DMMLatitude: 35 46.1382 N DMMLongitude: 78 56.0898 W 
AdditionalAddressInfo: DIST: 237.05 ft (S)COUNTY JURISDICTION (N) EventStartTime: 2019-05-22 04:31:02 
FirstDispatchTime: 2019-05-22 04:32:14 FirstEnrouteTime/:  FirstOnSceneTime/:  UnderControlTime/:  
LastUnitClearTime/:  FirstTransportTime/:  LastTransportArriveTime/:  EventCompletedTime/:  LastExportTime: 
2019-05-22 04:32:16 PatientContactTime/:  EventDistrict: 035 EventStation: S35 EventBeat/:  
EventReportingArea: 35O CadResponsePlan: APXN CadResponsePlanCategory: 69MD CallerName: VERIZON 
CallerAddress: 2 NC 540 SB CallerNumber: 9193698964 CallSource: W911 E911Used: T CallTakerUserId: 
LPAUL CallTakerName: Paul,Lauren DispatcherUserId: TBAZEMOR DispatcherName: BAZEMORE, TIFFANY 
EventDispositionCode/:  MultipleEventDispositions/:  FirstAgencyArriveTime/:  CadNotes/:  PrimaryUnit: E35 
LinkedEvents:  Event:  AgencyCode: CPD ServiceType: LAW ReportNumber/:  CadInciNumber: 190522067 
Event:  AgencyCode: WCEM ServiceType: EMS ReportNumber/:  CadInciNumber: 190522068 Event:  
AgencyCode: CFD ServiceType: FIRE ReportNumber: 19004425 CadInciNumber: 190522069

Page 7 of 7



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Joanna Helms, Economic Development Director 

Department(s): Economic Development 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve budget amendment for Economic Development for economic development incentive 

payment 

Approval Recommended? 

Staff recommends approval per terms of the agreement 

 

Item Details 

Town Council held a public hearing and approved a tax incentive agreement for Project Bluewater 

(Pentair) at its September 15, 2017 meeting. Per the Town’s economic development incentive policy, the 

agreement provides for a grant equal to 90 percent of the taxes paid to the Town by the company for 

three years. The incentive amount was inadvertently not included in the budget. A budget amendment 

is required to provide for the grant funds ($17,335.98). Funding will come from appropriated fund 

balance.  This is the first of three anticipated payments. 

 

Attachments 

 Company letter of request and incentive agreement 

 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 8 

 



























GENERAL FUND

Section 1. Revenues:

$17,336

$17,336

Section 2. Expenditures:

Economic Dev4elopment-Incentives $17,336

$17,336

Attest:

Lance Olive, Mayor Donna B. Hosch, MMC, Town Clerk

Section 3. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the
Finance Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 3rd day of December, 2019.

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

Town of Apex 
BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 8

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for
the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Ordinance be adopted:

Appropriated Fund Balance



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date:      December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Angela Reincke, Parks and Greenways Planner 

Department(s): Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve construction contract in the amount of $303,415.82 with Bridge Point Civil, LLC for 

construction of a portion of Phase II of the Middle Creek Greenway from Reunion Pointe to Straywhite 

Avenue in Miramonte and to authorize the Town Manager to execute all necessary documents for the 

project. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

 The Middle Creek Greenway was part of the 2017 Parks Bond. This section, approximately 1000 lf, is the 

first to be constructed and will connect the Reunion Pointe Subdivision to Straywhite Avenue in the 

Miramonte Subdivision.   

 

Attachments 

 Contract Document 























































































 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): John M. Brown , Director Parks Recreation and Cultural Resources 

Department(s): Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve property deed restrictions for Salem Pond Park and authorize Town Manager to sign any 

associated documents to complete the transaction 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

 

In 2017 the Town of Apex received a $150,000 Grant from the Federal Land and Water Conservation 

Fund to aid with the construction of Phase II of the Salem Pond Park property. Since that time staff has 

been trying to work through the LWCF process with both the State of North Carolina who administers the 

program and National Park Service who must sign off on the project. This is the last step of the process 

which involves an amendment to the property deed which assures that the property will remain as park 

property and not be used for any other purpose. The Town’s Legal Department has been working with 

both the State and Federal authorities to draft the attached deed restriction document.   

 

Attachments 

 *Notice of Deed Restriction 

 Site Map 



4
7
0

4

7

0

4
8
0

4

8

0

4

6

0

4

6

0

466

473

474

476

472

470 468

470

472

472

472

LEGEND:

PARK BOUNDARY- 12.33 Acres

EXISTING FACILITIES

PARTF REQUEST

FUTURE FACILITIES

TRAIL DISTANCE MARKERS

Salem Pond Park
PARTF Site Plan

Apex, North Carolina
April 5, 2016

SCALE: 1" = 100' - 0"

NORTH

0          50'        100'

EXISTING FACILITIESEXISTING FACILITIESSIDEWALK CONNECTION

TO SCHOOL

MULTI-USE NATURAL TURF

FIELD WITH FENCE &

SAFETY NETTING

EXISTING TRAIL

RESIDENTIAL

D
A

V
IS

 D
R

IV
E

O

L

D

 

J

E

N

K

S

 

R

O

A

D

SALEM ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

COMMERCIAL

EXISTING SCHOOL SIDEWALK

(4) TRAIL DISTANCE MARKERS (TYP.)

(4) ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION

SIGNS/REST AREAS (TYP.)

FUTURE TRAIL CONNECTION TO

CARY GREENWAY SYSTEM

SIDEWALK

CONNECTION

TO COMMERCIAL

BIKE

RACK

SHADE

STRUCTURE

WITH PICNIC

TABLES

PLAYGROUND

WITH FENCE

FUTURE

RESTROOM

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

S

EXISTING PARKING

LIGHTING TO INCREASE FIELD

USE (TYP.)

OPEN

PLAY

AREA

SHADE STRUCTURE WITH

PICNIC TABLES

EXISTING

SALEM POND

2.22 AC

EXISTING

LOWER

POND

1.01 AC

SALEM

MIDDLE

SCHOOL



Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NORTH CAROLINA       __Wake__ COUNTY 

Tax Parcel No. ___0742-59-1809_____    LWCF NO. 37-01046_ 

 

NOTICE OF LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND  

GRANT REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON PROPERTY  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Prepared By: Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney, Town of Apex 

 

After Recording Return To: Attention LWCF State Liaison Officer 

NC Department of Natural and Cultural Resources 

1615 Mail Service Center 

Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1615 

 

Brief Description for Index: LWCF Restrictions on Property 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

INDEX IN THE GRANTOR INDEX UNDER: 

 

(1) Town of Apex, P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502 

(2) State of North Carolina 

 

INDEX IN THE GRANTEE INDEX UNDER: 

 

(1) Town of Apex, P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502 

(2) State of North Carolina 

 

PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THIS NOTICE: 

 

The property that is subject to this Notice is that certain real property lying and being in 

_White Oak__ Township, __Wake__ County, North Carolina, containing __12.049_ acres more 

or less, and which is more particularly described in that certain deed recorded in Deed Book 



Page 2 of 4 

__13456_, Page _1268_, and Book of Maps BM2019, Page 1301, Wake County Register of Deeds 

(hereinafter the “Property”). 

 

OWNER OF THE PROPERTY- GRANT RECIPIENT: 

 

 Town of Apex, a North Carolina municipal corporation, is the sole owner in fee simple of 

the Property and has a principal address of ___________P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC, 

27502___________________ (hereinafter “Grant Recipient”). 

 

TAKE NOTICE THAT GRANT RECIPIENT DECLARES THE FOLLOWING: 

 

 Grant Recipient declares that the contents of this Notice are true and accurate and further 

declares as follows: 

 

 1. The Land and Water Conservation Fund Act of 1965 (as amended, in 54 U.S.C. 

200302, et seq.) (hereinafter, the “Act”) establishes the Land and Water Conservation Fund 

(hereinafter, the “Fund”) and authorizes the granting of financial assistance through the Fund’s 

State Grants Assistance Program to local governmental units or public authorities to assist them in 

acquiring, planning, and/or developing land to be used for outdoor recreation purposes.  Section 

143B-50.19(c) of the North Carolina General Statutes designates the Director of the North 

Carolina Division of Parks and Recreation (hereinafter, the “State Liaison Officer”), or any other 

additional personnel as designated by the Secretary of the North Carolina Department of Natural 

and Cultural Resources (hereinafter, “NCDNCR”), a department of the State of North Carolina 

(hereinafter, the “State”), as having the authority and responsibility to accept and administer  

funding received through the Fund.  

 

 2. The Property has been acquired or developed with Federal financial assistance from 

the Fund provided by the National Park Service of the U. S. Department of the Interior in 

accordance with the Act. Pursuant to a requirement of the Act, the Property shall in perpetuity (1) 

be used for, and only for, outdoor recreation purposes for the use and benefit of the general public 

and (2) not be converted to other than public outdoor recreation uses (whether by transfer, sale or 

in any other manner) without the express written approval of the Secretary of the U.S. Department 

of the Interior or his/her designee (hereinafter, the “Secretary”). Such conversion shall be 

approved only if the Secretary finds it to be in accord with the State’s then existing comprehensive 

statewide outdoor recreation plan and only upon such conditions as he/she deems necessary to 

assure the substitution of other recreation properties of at least equal fair market value and or 

reasonably equivalent usefulness and location. 

 

3.  The requirements and restrictions on the Property shall be permanent and perpetual 

and shall run with the land and shall be binding upon Grant Recipient and all parties having any 

right, title, or interest in the Property, and their heirs, successors, and assigns, and shall be binding 

upon all those claiming by, through, or under each such party, in perpetuity. 

 

 4. The Secretary shall have the right to enforce the requirements and restrictions on 

the Property through any and all means and authorities available under law or equity.  Any 

forbearance by the Secretary to exercise his/her rights of enforcement shall not be deemed or 



Page 3 of 4 

construed to be a waiver by the Secretary of such right in general or with respect to any specific 

violation of the requirements or restrictions applicable to the Property.  Grant Recipient grants the 

U.S. Department of the Interior, the State Liaison Officer, and their agents, employees, and 

representatives the right of entry and access to the Property for the purposes of inspecting the 

Property and exercising the aforementioned enforcement rights. 

 

 5. Grant Recipient hereby covenants and agrees, for itself, its successors and assigns, 

that, in the event it wishes to transfer the Property or any interest therein, it shall notify the State 

Liaison Officer, or any other additional personnel as designated by the Secretary of DNCR as 

having authority to administer funding received through the Fund, in writing of the names and 

addresses of any party to whom the Property is intended to be transferred at least sixty (60) days 

prior to the time said transfer is to be consummated.  Any transferee of the Property or any interest 

therein shall take title subject to the requirements and restrictions referenced herein or applicable 

to the Property.  Grant Recipient, for itself, its successors and assigns, further covenants and agrees 

to make specific reference to this Notice by its full name and recording information in a separate 

paragraph of all subsequent leases, deeds, or other legal instruments by which the Property or any 

interest therein is conveyed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES AND NOTARIZATION ARE ON THE NEXT PAGE] 



Page 4 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grant Recipient, by authority duly given, has hereunto caused these 

presents to be executed by its officers and its seal affixed, to be effective upon signature and 

recordation. 

 

 

GRANT RECIPIENT: 

 

TOWN OF APEX,  

a duly constituted North Carolina Municipal 

Corporation 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

Jacques Gilbert 

Mayor, Town of Apex 

 

ATTEST:       TOWN SEAL: 

 

 

By: ______________________________________    

 Donna B. Hosch 

 Town Clerk 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAKE 

 

 I, the undersigned Notary Public of the aforesaid county, North Carolina, do hereby certify 

that  Donna B. Hosch  personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he/she is the  

Town Clerk  of  the Town of Apex, a local government of the State of North Carolina, and that by 

authority duly given and as the act of the local government, the foregoing instrument was signed 

in its name by its  Mayor, Jacques Gilbert, sealed with its seal, and attested by himself/herself as 

its Town Clerk. 

 

 Witness my hand and notarial seal this the _____ day of _____________________, 20__. 

  

     Notary Public: _______________________________ 

  

     Printed Name: ______________________________ 

      

     My commission expires: _______________________ 

            

STAMP/SEAL 

 





 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Laurie Hohe 

Department(s): Town Attorney 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a settlement agreement and release between the Town of Apex and MREC KLP 

STILLWATER, LLC related to a dispute concerning reimbursement for the cost of construction of a multi-use 

path as part of the Stillwater development and authorize the Town Manager to execute same and approve 

Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 7 appropriating funds for the settlement.   

Approval Recommended? 

n/a 

 

Item Details 

Funding for the payment will come from appropriated fund balance. 

 

Attachments 

 Settlement Agreement and Release 

 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 7 



GENERAL FUND

Section 1. Revenues:

$15,488

$15,488

Section 2. Expenditures:

Streets-Capital Outlay Improvements $15,488

$15,488

Attest:

Lance Olive, Mayor Donna B. Hosch, MMC, Town Clerk

Town of Apex 
BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 7

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for
the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Ordinance be adopted:

Appropriated Fund Balance

Section 3. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the
Finance Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 3rd day of December, 2019.

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures



 

304052068 v2 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE 

This Settlement Agreement and Release is made and entered into this the ___ day of 

______________________, 2019 by and between MREC KLP STILLWATER, LLC, a 

Delaware limited liability company (“Developer”) and the Town of Apex, a North Carolina 

municipal corporation (“Town”). 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, as part of the development of the Stillwater residential subdivision 

(“Development”), Developer installed a greenway trail within the development and a multi-use 

path along Ragan Road; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer received reimbursement from the Town for the cost of construction of 

the greenway trail within the Development; and 

 

WHEREAS, a dispute arose between Developer and Town regarding reimbursement for the cost 

of construction of the multi-use path; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer and Town desire to compromise and settle any and all disputes arising 

out of or in any way connected with the matters described above; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that, in consideration of the payment to Developer by 

Town of $15,487.50 and Developer’s agreement to release Town from any and all liability 

arising out of the dispute, and for other good and sufficient consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Developer, for itself, its successors, and assigns, hereby releases and forever 

discharges Town, its successors, assigns, affiliates, agents, employees, and legal representatives, 

from any and all claims and demands, whether known or unknown, which Developer has, or may 

have, arising out of or in any way relating to the dispute described above. Developer covenants 

and agrees that it has not assigned, transferred or conveyed in any manner all or any part of its 

legal claims or legal rights against Town in connection with the matters described above. This 

Release shall be binding upon Developer and its successors and assigns, and shall inure to the 

benefit of Towns and its successors, assigns, affiliates, agents, employees and legal 

representatives. 

2. No party admits or acknowledges any liability to any other party and specifically 

denies the existence of such liability. 

3. No promise or agreement other than those recited above has been made as 

consideration for the releases and discharges effected by this agreement and Developer gives 

these releases and discharges for the sole consideration recited above. 



 

304052068 v2 

4. This Settlement Agreement and Release constitutes the entire agreement of the parties. 

All prior understandings, representations and agreements are merged in this agreement, and this 

Settlement Agreement and Release shall not be modified in any manner, except by written 

instrument signed by both parties. 

5. The parties attest that this Settlement Agreement and Release is voluntarily made after 

ample opportunity to review the document with any individuals, advisors and counsel so desired. 

6. This Settlement Agreement and Release shall be governed and interpreted by the laws 

of the State of North Carolina. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Settlement Agreement and Release as 

of the day and year written above, in duplicate, and have set forth their signatures and seals with 

the intention of executing this document under seal. 

 

 

MREC KLP STILLWATER, LLC 

a Delaware limited liability company 

 

By: MREC KLP JV1 Holdings, LLC, a 

Delaware limited liability company 

Its member 

 

By: KLP MK Funding LLC, a Florida 

limited liability company 

Its Manager 

 

By: 

__________________________(SEAL) 

 James P Harvey 

 Authorized Signatory 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Florida  

_____________County 

 

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and of 

said County and State aforesaid, do hereby 

certify that James P. Harvey personally 

appeared before me this day and 

acknowledged to me that he voluntarily 

signed the foregoing document for the 

purpose stated therein and in the capacity 

indicated. Witness my hand and official seal, 

this the ____ day of _________________, 

2019. 

 

 [Seal]  

 

____________________________________ 

____________________________________   

Notary Public 

My commission expires:________________ 

 

 

  



 

304052068 v2 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF APEX 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Town Manager 

 

Attest: 

 

____________________________________ 

Town Clerk 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the 

manner required by the Local Government 

Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

____________________________________ 

Finance Director 

 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Minutes of the November 19, 2019 Regular Meeting and Closed Session Minutes of June 

18, July 16, August 6, August 20, September 3, September 17, October 1, October 15, November 6, and 

November 19, 2019 (Closed Session Minutes recorded separately) 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

The Closed Session Minutes have been reviewed by the Town Attorney. 

 

Attachments 

 Minutes of the November 19, 2019 Council Meeting 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2019 – Page 189 

 

 

 

Apex Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, November 19, 2019 

 
   

Lance Olive, Mayor 
Nicole L. Dozier, Mayor Pro Tempore 

William S. Jensen, Wesley M. Moyer, Audra M. Killingsworth, and 
Brett D. Gantt, Council Members 

Drew Havens, Town Manager 
Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 
Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 
Laurie L. Hohe, Town Attorney 

 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Apex Town Council 

scheduled for Tuesday, November 19, 2019, at 

7:00 PM was held in the Council Chamber of 

Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street 

 

In attendance were Mayor Lance Olive, Mayor Pro Tem Nicole L. Dozier, and  

Council Members William S. Jensen, Wesley M. Moyer, Audra M. Killingsworth and Brett D. Gantt 

Also in attendance were Town Manager Drew Havens, Assistant Town Manager  

Shawn Purvis, Town Clerk Donna B. Hosch, and Assistant Town Attorney Brian Moyer 

 

COMMENCEMENT 
       
 

Mayor Olive called the meeting to order, asked for a moment of silent reflection, and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

 

 

PRESENTATIONS 
       

 

PR1 Lance Olive, Mayor 

Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association’s (GFOA’s) Award for Excellence in 

Financial Reporting to Vance Holloman, Finance Officer and Suzanne Parmentier, Accounting 

and Budget Manager 

Mayor Olive presented the Certificate to Vance Holloman and Suzanne Parmentier, stating that this had 

been the 25th consecutive year the Town has received the award.  Mr. Holloman thanked staff for their 

support and he thanked Keith Joyce.  He additionally thanked Ms. Parmentier and her staff for all their 

hard work.  Mr. Holloman introduced his newest employee, Preeta Nayak. 

 

PR2 Keith Joyce, Joyce and Company, Independent Auditor 

Presentation of June 30, 2019 audit report from Joyce and Company  



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2019 – Page 190 

 

 

 

Mr. Joyce congratulated the Town for its receipt of the Award, noting that only a small percentage of 

municipalities receive this Award, even fewer receiving it so many consecutive years.  He presented 

highlights of the audit.  There was one interim finding and a management letter item, each of which was 

explained.  

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
       

 

CN1 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Cemetery refund of $1,200 to H.R. and Brenda M. Morton 

CN2 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Apex Tax Reports dated September 4, 2019 and October 1, 2019 

CN3 Mary Beth Manville, Human Resources Director 

Addition of one position for the Permits and Inspections Department to add a Code Enforcement 

Officer, Grade 21 

CN4 Adam Stephenson 

Revisions to the Town Standard Specifications and Details. 

CN5 Adam Stephenson 

Construction contract and authorization for the Town Manager to execute same and 

corresponding Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 6 and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 

7 for U-5530AC James Street to Downtown Pedestrian Improvements 

CN6 Russell Dalton 

Chatham Street Sidewalk Review and Oversight Agreement with NCDOT and corresponding 

Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2020-6 

CN7 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Statement of the Town Council for Rezoning Case #19CZ16, Horton Park PUD Amendment and TF-

CZ, MFW Investments, LLC,  petitioner for the property located 5100, 5101, & 5220 Jessie Drive; 0 

Dezola Street; and 8140 (portion of), 8252, 8306 & 8308 Smith Road 

CN8 Sarah Rayfield, Senior Planner 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision approving the Reserve at Mills Farm Major Site 

Plan 

 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2019 – Page 191 

 

 

 

CN9 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager  

Approval and authorization for the Town Manager to execute the same for an Encroachment 

Agreement between the Town of Apex and the Townes at North Salem Homeowners Association, 

Inc.  The grantee wishes to install art pieces within the Town’s right-of-way in accordance with the 

approved Master Subdivision Plan approved on September 20, 2016. 

 

Mayor Olive called for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council Member Killingsworth 

made the motion; Council Member Gantt seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
       
 

Mayor Olive stated that the Town Manager requested the addition of a New Business item:  to permit an 

organized fun run on a portion of the Beaver Creek Greenway on Thursday, November 28, 2019 beginning 

at 9:00 a.m. 

 

Council Member Killingsworth requested the addition of an Unfinished Business item to present general 

comments. 

 

Mayor Olive called for a motion to approve the Regular Meeting Agenda.  Council Member 

Gantt made the motion with the addition of the stated items;  

Council Member Dozier seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

PUBLIC FORUM 
       
 

Joseph Malfeo spoke about the funding of the Electric Operations building, stating that notice of the 

project was made to him via his HOA.  He stated he received this notice after grading began.  He asked 

that the project be stopped until further talks with neighbors.  The neighbors were opposed to a cell tower.  

They foresaw safety issues. 

 

Ann Nyland stated they have asked for additional information regarding the electric operations building 

that has yet to be received.  She spoke about the change in the dynamics of the property now that a 

residential neighborhood is in place.  Children will be at risk because of truck traffic. 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2019 – Page 192 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
       
 

PH1 Sarah Rayfield, Senior Planner 

Rezoning Case #19CZ02 Morris Acres PUD.  The applicant, Kaplan Residential, sought to rezone 

approximately ±17.4376 acres, for the properties located at 0, 7208, & 7208B Morris Acres Road 

(PINs 0732289587, 0732382530, & 0732382709) from Rural Residential (RR) to Planned Unit 

Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). 

Staff oriented Council to the site.  A neighborhood meeting was held and a traffic study was done.  A fee 

in lieu was recommended.  Planning staff recommended approval with conditions offered by the 

applicant; Planning Board also recommended approval.  Staff answered Council questions related to 

fees and stormwater mitigation.   

 

Jason Barron, Morningstar Law Group, explained they tried to work with neighbors to get this to something 

that would fit.  At the neighborhood meeting, they presented the updated plans to what seemed to be 

to the satisfaction of the neighbors.  He detailed all the changes they were able to make.  Mr. Barron 

pointed out the recommendation of approval from staff and the Planning Board.  He respectfully asked 

for approval by Council. 

 

Mayor Olive declared the Public Hearing open. 

 

Ryan Simmons presented concerns of several neighbors related to buffers, sanitary lines, and stormwater 

issues.   

 

Mayor Olive declared the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Council questioned staff about water flow in relation to storm events.  Mr. Peter Cnossen, Jones and 

Cnossen Engineering, stated a flood study was done; but they’ve never gone to a 100 year stormwater 

design.  Conversation ensued along these lines.  The applicant also answered Council questions related 

to setbacks and buffers.  Mr. Barron will speak with his client about the other concerns presented by Mr. 

Simmons.  He explained why this development would be in the best interest of the public.  After conferring 

with his client, Mr. Barron stated they would commit to increasing buffer size on part of the property. 

 

Council stated he felt this should be held off until further development of the area.   

 

Council stated she felt the proposed development could be beneficial at some point in the future.   



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2019 – Page 193 

 

 

 

Council stated he hoped the family would be able to sell the property and move forward with their lives.   

 

Council stated he was concerned about the quality of the development. 

 

Mayor Olive called for a motion.  Council Member Gantt made the motion to deny the rezoning with 

the additional stated condition; Council Member Dozier seconded the motion. 

Council Members Gantt, Dozier, Jensen, and Killingsworth voted in the  

affirmative; Council Member Moyer voted in the negative. 

The motion for denial carried by a 4-1 vote. 

 

PH2 Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Rezoning Application #19CZ18 (113 West Street). The applicant, Maureen Hughes, sought to 

rezone approximately 0.19 acres located at 113 West Street (PIN 0741295052) from Office and 

Institutional (O&I) to Medium Density-Conditional Zoning (MD-CZ).  

Staff oriented Council to the site.  Planning staff recommended approval as did the Planning Board.   

 

Mayor Olive declared the Public Hearing open.   

 

With no one wishing to speak, the Mayor declared the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Mayor Olive called for a motion.  Council Member Killingsworth made the motion to  

approve the rezoning; Council Member Gantt seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

PH3 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Ordinance on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex David L. 

Heidinger and New Hill Baptist Church & Cemetery Trustees property containing 3.992 acres 

located at 3605 and 3700 Old US 1 Highway, Annexation #674, into the Town’s corporate limits. 

This item is to be heard with Rezoning #19CZ19 3605 & 3700 Old US 1 Hwy. 

PH4 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Rezoning Application #19CZ19 3605 & 3700 Old Us 1 Hwy and Ordinance. The applicants, Michael 

Pfeifer & Jennifer Crank, sought to rezone approximately 4.33 acres located at 3605 & 3700 Old 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2019 – Page 194 

 

 

 

US 1 Hwy from Wake County Residential-40W (R-40W) & Wake County Highway Commercial (HC) 

to Mixed Office-Residential-Retail-Conditional Zoning (MORR-CZ). 

Staff oriented Council to the site.  Staff recommended approval as did the Planning Board.  Staff 

answered Council questions related to zoning and the existing cemetery. 

 

The applicant answered Council questions related to why the wells were contaminated and with what.   

 

Mayor Olive declared the Public Hearing open.  With no one wishing to speak, Mayor Olive declared the 

Public Hearing closed. 

 

Mayor Olive called for a motion.  Council Member Jensen made the motion to adopt the Annexation 

Ordinance and the rezoning and to adopt the Ordinance related to rezoning;  

Council Member Dozier seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

PH5 Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Ordinance on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex William and 

Marilyn Shenton (single-family) property containing 2.859 acres located at 2013 Ramblewood 

Drive, Annexation #678, into the Town’s corporate limits 

Staff oriented Council to the site and stated it recommended approval.   

 

Mayor Olive called for a motion.  Council Member Dozier made the motion to adopt 

the Ordinance; Council Member Gantt seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

PH6 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Various amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance 

Staff oriented Council to the amendments.  The Planning Board recommended denial of the first 

amendment, staff outlining the reasons why.  Staff answered Council questions related to types of 

continuances and conversation ensued along this line.   

 

Mayor Olive declared the Public Hearing open.  

 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2019 – Page 195 

 

 

 

Jeff Roach stated that asking for a continuance is never taken lightly by them, and he explained the 

consequences to the builder as well as to the community if the process was removed.     

 

 Mayor Olive declared the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Item one:  Council wondered if anyone else in the builder community had weighed in, the Mayor and 

Town Manager responding ‘no’.   

 

Council stated he could not see denying this outright. 

 

Council stated he wanted the automatic part to remain in the the Ordinance. 

 

Council Member Jensen made a motion to deny a change to item one;  

Council Member Dozier seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

Items two through five:  staff stated the Planning Board recommended approval of these items. 

 

Mayor Olive called for a motion.  Council Member Dozier made the motion to adopt Items 

two through five; Council Member Killingsworth seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

Mayor Olive called for a ten minute recess. 

 

Mayor Olive, needing to leave the meeting, requested that Mayor Pro Tem Dozier continue with the 

meeting. 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
       
 

OB1 Bill Jensen, Council Member 

Direction to staff to move work on the proposed study relative to meeting the Council’s Clean 

Energy Goals from the Fiscal 2020-21 budget and work plan, to the current year budget and work 

plan 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2019 – Page 196 

 

 

 

Council stated he voted for this but was unaware of what he voted for.  He wanted to see this done this 

fiscal year, moving ahead if that could be done at a reasonable cost.  Maybe the study could be broken 

into two parts – one for lights and one for canopies.  Council spoke about the advances being made in 

this area.  He requested taking a look at this issue this fiscal year, the study being done with the possibility 

of a bond issue in November.   

 

Council stated moving this would affect the current budget, it would push staff, and a bond for this issue 

was not at the top of what she was hearing from citizens.  She wanted the item to remain where it was 

prioritized, where it would be predictable for staff.   

 

Council agreed, stating that the wanted the Environmental Committee to interact with the study because 

he felt they would do so effectively.   

 

Council agreed, stating she wanted to see this done but did not want it rushed.  The public is telling them 

that there are other priorities, and she didn’t want to see this as a bond issue.   

 

Council Member Jensen made a motion to deny the request;  

Council Member Killingsworth seconded the motion. 

The motion to deny carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
       
 

UB1 Audra Killingsworth, Council Member 

ADDED ITEM  :  Council stated a Transgender Day of Remembrance vigil would be held at the State 

Capitol tomorrow, Wednesday. 

 

Council stated she should have said something earlier about this, and that she apologized for not doing 

so.  She stated that earlier in the year, she had the support of three of the Council Members in supporting 

a Resolution for LGBTQIA Pride Month.  Several residents reached out to her expressing their thanks.   

 

The dissenting member of Council made disparaging comments about the LGBTQIA community, stating 

they are not relevant to Apex, as well as making disrespectful comments about the African American 

community and Juneteenth, dismissing them as sarcasm.  These comments were made specifically to 

Mayor Pro Tem Dozier, and the comments continued as Council went into Closed Session.  Council stated 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2019 – Page 197 

 

 

 

she was in shock and disappointed in herself for not standing up and putting a stop the comments.  She 

apologized. 

 

Council spoke about anti-racism and how everyone deserves respect and servility.  She cited quotes from 

several well-known individuals.  Council stated the Mayor Pro Tem had earned the respect of Council and 

deserved respectful treatment. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
       
 

NB1 Drew Havens, Town Manager 

ADDED ITEM  :  Staff stated Paul Petersen, owner of Wake Zone, intended to have a few runners gather at 

his location for a fun run to support Western Wake Crisis Ministry.  He thought he would get only a few 

interested runners, but the event grew larger than he’d planned.  Staff explained the route and how the 

run would be managed.  Mr. Peterson was asking for the run to take place on a portion of the Beaver 

Creek Greenway. 

 

Council asked if guidelines are being worked on for such events, staff responding ‘yes’.  Staff did not see 

any major problems from the request.  Council asked that staff would devise guidelines that would allow 

staff to approve such requests during some situations without Council approval. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Dozier called for a motion.  Council Member Killingsworth made the motion 

to approve the request; Council Member Gantt seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
       
 

Drew Havens, Town Manager 

To discuss a personnel matter 

Mayor Pro Tem Dozier called for a motion to go into Closed Session.  Council Member Gantt 

made the motion; Council Member Killingsworth seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Dozier called for a return to Open Session with no objections from Council. 

 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2019 – Page 198 

 

 

 

WORK SESSION 
       
 

There were no Work Session items. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
       
 

With there being no further business and without objection from Council, Mayor Pro Tem Dozier adjourned 
the meeting. 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

Town Clerk 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________________ 

Nicole Dozier, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, P.E., Assistant Town Manager 

Department(s): Water Resources 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a Master Services Agreement, valid through June 30, 2022, with Ellington Contractors, Inc. 

and authorization for the Town Manager to execute same for pumping, hauling, pipe cleaning, and video 

inspection services on an as needed basis. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

The general scope of work is to provide pumping, hauling, pipe cleaning, and video inspection services.  

Contract will end on June 30, 2022, unless it is terminated per terms of the master agreement beforehand.  

When the Town requests a service, a detailed scope of services will be provided by the contractor in a task 

order format that includes the cost of services and schedule.  Purchase orders will be issued based on 

acceptable conditions of the task order under the terms of the master services agreement.   

 

This agreement does not restrict the Town from hiring other contractors for like services.   

 

Attachments 

 Master Services Agreement for Ellington Contractors, Inc. 

















 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to set a Public Hearing for Tuesday, December 17, 2019 at 7:00 pm to receive citizen input regarding 

the formulation of the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual Budget. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

It has been the custom of the Apex Town Council to hold a Public Hearing in advance of the 

preparation of the proposed Annual Budget so that comments and suggestions of citizens can be 

considered while the budget document is formulated.  This Pre-Budget Hearing will be advertised on the 

Town’s website, social media and posted in the lobby at Town Hall. 

 

Any written comments received by USPS or through the advertised special email address, 

annual.budget@apexnc.org, will be forwarded to Town Council. 

 

Attachments 

 None 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: NEW BUSINESS 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s):  

Department(s):  

  

Requested Motion 

Recognition of Outgoing Council Members 

Lance Olive, William S. Jensen, and Wesley M. Moyer will be recognized for their service with the Town 

Approval Recommended? 

 

 

Item Details 

 

 

Attachments 

 None 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: SINE DIE 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s):  

Department(s):  

  

Requested Motion 

Mayor Olive will adjourn the meeting Sine Die. 

 

After a brief recess, Mayor Pro Tem Dozier will reconvene the meeting to begin with the Organizational 

Proceedings. 

Approval Recommended? 

 

 

Item Details 

 

 

Attachments 

  



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: ORGAZINATIONAL PROCEEDINGS 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s):  

Department(s):  

  

Requested Motion 

ORGANIZATIONAL PROCEEDINGS OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL 

Administering of Oaths 

Jacques K. Gilbert, Cheryl F. Stallings, and Terry Mahaffey will take the Oath of Office and  be seated on the 

dais 

Selection of Mayor Pro Tempore 

Council will vote in a Mayor Pro Tempore, and that person will take the Oath of Office 

Appointments of Standing Committees and Liaisons 

Mayor Gilbert will appoint Council Committees and Liaisons 

Approval Recommended? 

 

 

Item Details 

 

 

Attachments 

 None 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: NEW BUSINESS 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Calendar of Town Council meetings for 2020 and 2021, set the start time of the 

meetings, and set the location of the meeting.  

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

Town Code Sec. 2-27 requires the Town Council to adopt a regular meeting schedule (days, time, and 

location) at its organizational meeting.  

 

Council Member Mahaffey is suggesting an alternate calendar be considered that moves the Council 

meetings to the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of each month. Per staff, the following changes will come with a 

change in meeting day:  

1. Change agenda deadlines. 

2. Change legal ad deadlines. 

3. Update all published schedules reliant on Town Council decisions. 

4. Update all applications for processes reliant on Town Council decisions. 

5. Change Board of Adjustment meeting day (they currently meet on 2nd Tuesday. They will 

need to hold a meeting to vote on the new day and to change their Rules of Procedure). 

6. Planning Board meetings will change to the 3rd Monday. Alternatively, Planning Board 

meeting day can stay on the second Monday (staff will be required to go to back-to-back 

Monday/Tuesday meetings most months); legal notices for PB will often have to be sent separately 

from the TC notice which increases costs. 



 

Council may wish to cancel meetings adjacent to (or during the week of) holidays and either move or 

cancel the meeting held on the day of local elections. This will be part of the discussion of this agenda 

item.  

 

There are two sets of calendars attached for each year (2020 and 2021) one showing the current 1st and 

3rd Tuesday schedule, and the other showing the change to the 2nd and 4th Tuesday.  

 

The traditional starting time for meetings has been 7:00 p.m. There has been discussion of moving the 

time to 6:00 p.m. Council will discuss and decide this as well.  

 

 

 

Attachments 

 Calendars 











 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: NEW BUSINESS 

Meeting Date: December 3, 2019 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Audra Killingsworth, Council Member 

Department(s): Governing Body 

  

Requested Motion 

Discussion regarding Town Council Resolutions 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

 

Item Details 

Discussion leading to potential Council consensus on what Resolutions they would agree to bring forward 

for the new Council.  

 

Attachments 

 None 


	Top
	CN1 Annexation #681 Medlin Property
	CNCoverAnnex681
	02PetitionMapsLegal
	Clerk Documents

	CN2 19CZ02 Morris Acres PUD
	01_Cover_Statement
	02_Statement_19CZ02

	CN3 19CZ18 113 West Street
	01_Cover_19CZ18
	02_Statement19CZ18
	03_Ordinance19CZ18
	04LegalDesc

	CN4 19CZ19 3605 & 3700 Old US 1 Hwy Statement
	Cover 19CZ19 3605 & 3700 Old US 1 Hwy Statement (1)
	Statement 19CZ19 3605 & 3700 Old US 1 Hwy

	CN5 November UDO Amendments Statement
	Cover Nov UDO Amendments-various-Statement
	Nov UDO Amendments Statement-various

	CN6 19CZ20 Blazing Trail Drive
	Cover 19CZ20 2708 Blazing Trail Drive
	19CZ20 2708 Blazing Trail Drive

	CN7 Tom Olive Historic Landmark
	Cover Sheet (CN) Tom Olive Historic Landmark
	Tom Olive Landmark Report 11-27-19

	CN8 James Madison Williams House
	Cover Sheet (CN) James Madison Williams
	James Madison Williams Report 11-27-19

	CN9 Pentair Incentive
	Cover Sheet- Econ. Dev. Budget Amend
	Pentair Econ. Dev. Incentive
	Budget Amendment No. 8

	CN10 Middle Creek Greenway Construction
	Middle Creek Greenway Construction Cover Sheet
	Middle Creek Portion of Phase II Contract Agenda 12319

	CN11 Salem Pond Park Restrictions
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet- LWCF Deed Restriction Salem Pond Park
	SALEM POND REV-LWCF Site Plan
	Salem Pond Park Deed_Notice of LWCF Requirements Restrictions_ Final
	Salen Pond BM2019-1031

	CN12 Stillwater Settlement
	Agenda Item Coversheet Stillwater
	Budget Amendment No. 7
	Settlement and Release - Stillwater

	CN13 Minutes
	Cover_2019.11.19
	2019.11.19 Meeting

	CN14 Ellington Contract
	00 COVER SHEET - Ellington Contractor MSA Cover Sheet
	Ellington Contractor Signed MSA

	CN15 Pre-Budget Hearing
	CS_ PreBudget Public Hearing

	NB1 Council Members Leaving
	NB - Council Leaving

	NB1 Organizational Proceedings
	Organizational Proceedings

	NB1 Council Meeting Calenda
	NB - Council meeting schedule
	20_21 Council Calendars

	NB2 Council Resolutions
	NB - Council Resolutions

	Bottom

